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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEERWR D

OPERATION REVIEW

The operational results of the two liquid product terminals of the
Group operating in Panyu ("XHIT") and Dongguan ("DZIT") plus the
warehouse and logistic centre for solid chemical products located
in Panyu (the "Solid Warehousing Centre”] continuously performed

WO

AEEREBRRZEEZMEBRILER
W NREAEEIRITRMNAEE]) Z&
BEBEURMUNEBZEBCERREER
WO (TEEREH L) 2 RBRARF

with remarkable improvements during the year. The results were  [ERHESIIFAZENE - ZSHEEWT -
as follows:
XHIT DzIT
PRAELE RNALE
Operational statistics EERHYT 2013 2012 Change % 2013 2012 Change %
—¥-=f —_T—F gt —B-=F —T--F 1%

Liquid product terminal, BILERBE  BEUAR

storage and transshipment B R

services
Number of vessels visited ~ MEAREE
- foreign — st 187 194 36 136 9% 447
- domestic — 7K 314 202 +5h.4 212 125 +69.6
Number of trucks served to &Y 2 EHEEE

pick up cargoes 13,209 14,389 -8.2 24,762 18,016 +37.4
Number of drums filled EREE 51,089 47405 +7.8 1,895 1,563 +21.2
Transshipment volume EiE (AN)

(metric ton)
- oils — A - - - 91,969 9,933 +825.9
- petrochemicals —Aitm 170,389 149 899 +13.7 23,905 26,621 -10.2
Port jetty throughput SN

(metric ton) 865,803 675,922 +28.1 1,342,917 620,262 +116.5
Tank farm throughput BrERAM 2 (A)

[metric ton) 1,170,068 961,080 +21.7 2,062,161 1,130,379 +82.4
Solid chemical warehousing E%{L 2R A ERH%

services
Floor area leased out (m?)  BHHRERRB(FHK) 26,800 24,100 +112  N/ATBAE NATER NATER
Cargoes received (metric ton) YWEE (M) 85,262 81,453 +4.7  NARER NATEE  NATER
Cargoes issued (metric ton) ~ BEE(ABE) 90,390 76,967 174  N/ATER NATNER NATER

ERRRERA R 5 —T=FFR



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWR DT

Liquid Product Terminal Business

XHIT

The operational performances in XHIT continuously improved
during 2013. Port jetty throughput and tank farm throughput
increased by 28.1% and 21.7% respectively on a year on year
basis. Transshipment volume, total number of vessels visited, and
number of drums filled also increased. The major reason of the
improvements was the introduction of new clients. However, the
number of trucks served to pick up cargoes decreased by 8.2% on
a year on year basis as some clients picked up their cargoes by
vessel instead of by truck. Apart from some fuel oil tanks, which
are under revamping, the average utilization rate of chemical
tanks reached 93% in 2013, an increase of 3 percentage points on
a year on year basis.

DZIT

DZIT started to leverage its capabilities and market influence
during 2013 after over a year operations. Major operational
statistics achieved a significant increase in 2013. Port jetty
throughput and tank farm throughput increased by 116.5% and
82.4% respectively on a year on year basis. The Company tried
its best to tap into market potentials and to expand its oil and
chemical storage volume. Meanwhile, it proactively diversified its
value added services to improve its transshipment business with
the help of spare capacity from jetties. In 2013, transshipment
volume reached approximately 116,000 metric tons, representing
an increase of 217% on a year on year basis. The yearly average
utilization rate of tank farm reached approximately 82% in 2013, an
increase of 7 percentage points on a year on year basis.

Solid Chemical Warehousing Business

As for the solid chemical warehousing business, cargoes received
and issued realized an increase of 4.7% and 17.4% in 2013
respectively, as compared with last year. In 2013, the floor areas
leased out increased by 11.2% on a year on year basis accordingly.

HANS ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED 6

RICEMIBERER
PRAECE

PNREICER - E—=F 7 RERBEHE
WE -HHEARERTGFREEATESD 5
IREILNN28.1% % 21.7% - HigHE - fiE
AR B REREE Mg - MERAE
TREFEF - Al BlEYW &S
HRIRFEFD82%  WWIHHERETESE
AEMREEEEKEY -BETEESE
ERRET TR LBRETRZFY
FRER-ZE—=F=E93% ' EF LA
=EEE -

RNALE

RMNALEEE—F%% RZTE—=F
FREEEENRMEEE N —T—=
FrEBEBRIAYUTEBEKRARE < 15
AN ERTHFREEATEDBIEF LA
116.5% N 82.4% ° ANA R BB ALS /1%
WS R M BREIT T
2 o A HEGMFBHEFNESS -
AR A H e 2275 SR IR 58 12 E AR AS -
RIT—=%F  #HHFESELN116,0002
WE - IREFEEH217% c FEREER -2 —=
FrBRFFHFERERLNLLY  BF LA+
EEDE -

ERtERREEL
HERTEREEESMSs  —E—=F
ZWEERFEEENRREF LFHLT% R
174% - W_ZE—ZFEHHEEEER
FREHBRI1.2% o

ANNUAL REPORT 2013



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Operating financials
The Group's reportable segments represent XHIT and DZIT. The
breakdown of turnovers of XHIT and DZIT are as follows:

BEENWR DM

R RS
REBOAREDH A/ EALERFEM
A - NRACERRMALEZ &2
REAAAEOT ¢

XHIT DzZIT
PMRALE FMARLE
2013 2012 2013 2012
—“E-cF —E-CF —E-=% —E-CF
HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %  HK$000 %
TEn % TEL % TER % TEL %
Terminal, storage and BE - BER
transshipment income EEE1ON 75,115 720 76,048 755 113,742 98.0 101,870 98.6
Portincome AOYA 3,285 31 327 33 2,32 20 1,455 14
Solid chemical warehousing ER{EREERA
income 25,955 29 21,369 202 NATER NARER NANER  NANER
XHIT PMRABICE

The turnover of XHIT [excluding Solid Warehousing Centre])
was HK$78.4 million in 2013, representing a decrease of 1.2%
compared with same period of last year. Income from oil storage
and chemical storage dropped by 2.7% and 2.4% respectively on a
year on year basis due to keen market competitions, resulting in
decrease of unit storage rates. Income from transshipment service
increased by 10.0%, while port income kept flat with 2012.

The revenue from Solid Warehousing Centre operations continued
to improve in 2013. The turnover reached approximately HK$26.0
million, representing an increase of 21.5% and contributing 24.9%
revenue to XHIT. The average lease out rate reached 82.0% in
2013, compared with 74.7% in 2012.

DZIT

The turnover of DZIT reached HK$116.1 million in 2013,
representing an increase of 12.3% compared with last year.
Income from storage, transshipment service and port operation all
increased significantly. In particular, income from transshipment
service reached HK$1.1 million in 2013 from HK$0.2 million in
2012, reflecting the significant improvement of port operation.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWR DT

OUTLOOK

The Group sees 2014 as a year with both opportunities and
challenges. China’s economy is entering into an era of structural
reform, thus is expected to grow in a slower than earlier years’
pace, which logically results in moderate demand growth for
oil and chemical products and slower market expansion for our
business. Chinese government will implement relatively tight
monetary policy with lower liquidity in capital markets. However,
it is widely expected that the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau free
trade zone will be established in the second half of 2014, and we
being the leading international logistics centre in the region, will
probably tap into the benefits under such establishment. Besides,
the hot topic on liberalization of oil product imports is under
discussion recently. Once the liberalization is realised into actual
policies, the potential of our oil terminals will greatly boost our
business growth.

o Liquid Product Terminal Business

Based on the analysis of macro market circumstances as
well as internal situation, the Group has already set up clear-
cut strategies to develop our future business. First of all, we
are going to fully leverage our existing facilities and improve
the efficiency and utilization of our assets. Meanwhile, with
best effort, we will expand our value added services including
transshipment and blending of products in accordance with
demand and requirements of our clients. In addition, due to
the shrinking market of domestic fuel oil demand, we will
gradually revamp the existing fuel oil tanks to light oil or
petrochemical tanks. Some 80,000 cubic meter fuel oil tanks
have already been converted in 2013. We shall continue the
process for the remaining tanks in 2014. Secondly, we will
proactively pursue to utilize our spare port capacity and
reserved land in DZIT. The current storage capacity of DZIT
is still far from fully utilizing the maximum port capacity.
Through the cooperations with our customers for tailor-made
new storage tanks and services, these precious resources
become our sources of future business growth and will bring
tremendous return to the Group. Thirdly, the Group will take
various measures to reduce cost, in particular, finance cost.
Lastly, we will try every effort to expand our business scopes
and look for some new business areas, such as building
services stations in some strategic locations, in order to
extend our business chain to downstream and to realize
business integration.

HANS ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED 8
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In relation to the strategies, the Company layed down specific
production targets to our operation team, including but not
limited to jetty throughput, storage utilization, transshipment
handling volume, as well as value added services etc., and
formulated detailed work plans so as to effectively implement
the above strategies and achieve targets.

With the efforts of all the employees, we are confident that
the Company would turn around its results and return its
shareholders in the coming years.

Solid Warehousing Centre

After commencement of operation for two years, the Group's
solid warehousing centre business continued to improve its
performance. In 2014, we maintain the provision of quality
services, expand customer base, and especially introduce
high-end renowned multinational companies to land on
our Centre to expand its market share. We expect that the

BEENWR DM
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business will realize stable growth in the future.

FINANCIAL REVIEW B35 8
2013 2012 Changes
—B-=F —T=-F -dle
HK$’000 HK$'000 %
FAERT TAT %
Turnover B 220,421 204,019 +8.0
Turnover less direct costs and EEBR B R
operating expenses REBR 24,875 11,490 +116.5
Loss before interest and tax BB N B TR AT ER
("LBIT") (rLBiTl) (34,589) (44,537) -22.3
Loss attributable to equity PAYNE] S
shareholders of the Company FEG 18 (108,061) (116,713 -7.4
Earnings before interest, tax, BRAE TR TER
depreciation and amortisation BIERTE A
("EBITDA") ([EBITDAL) 96,997 82,851 +17.1
Gross margin EHE 11.3% 5.6% +101.8
Net loss margin FEEX (52.1%) (60.8%) -14.3
Basis loss per share (HK cents) BRREAREE GBI (2.90) (3.13] -7.3
Diluted loss per share [HK cents) TR#EREE GBI (2.90) (3.13) -7.3
ERRRERAHE 9 ZE-=FFR



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENWR DT

The Group's financial performances improved during 2013.
The Group's turnover reached to HK$220.4 million during the
year, representing an increase of 8.0% on a year on year basis.
Nevertheless, the turnover of XHIT was HK$78.4 million during
the year, representing a slight decrease of 1.2% over the same
period of last year. Solid Warehousing Centre and DZIT generated
turnover of HK$26.0 million and HK$116.1 million respectively to
the Group in 2013, representing an increase of 21.5% and 12.3%
respectively on a year on year basis. The increase in total turnover
was attributable to the rental income from oil tanks resumed
from Sinopec in XHIT and higher capacity utilization in Solid
Warehousing Centre and DZIT in 2013. The gross operating profit
increased significantly by 116.5% from HK$11.5 million to HK$24.9
million and the gross margin improved from 5.6% to 11.3% were
due to higher turnover resulted from higher utilization rate during
the year of 2013. LBIT for the year was HK$34.6 million (2012:
HK$44.5 million) and EBITDA for the year was HK$97.0 million
(2012: HK$82.9 million). Besides, the loss attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company reduced to HK$108.1 million as
compared to HK$116.7 million last year that was due to increase
in turnover for 2013. The basic and diluted loss per share for the
year were 2.90 Hong Kong cents (2012: basic and diluted loss per
share of 3.13 Hong Kong cents).

Capital structure, liquidity and gearing

The Group’s financial position remained stable. As at 31 December
2013, the Group's total cash and cash equivalents amounted to
approximately HK$57.0 million (2012: HK$73.6 million). Most of the
funds were held in Hong Kong dollar, Renminbi yuan ("RMB") and
US dollar.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group's current ratio was 1.72 (2012:
1.29). The change in ratio was mainly attributable to the operating
cash flow generated and reduction of bank loan repayable within
one year during the year. The Group’'s gearing ratio (defined as
total liabilities to total equity) as at 31 December 2013 was 4.73
(2012: 3.54). The increase was attributable to the decrease in
shareholder’s equity in respect of the loss incurred during the
year.

Financial resources

The current cash reserves and recurrent operating cash flow is
sufficient for the daily requirements for current operations. The
Group has successfully arranged external bank loan financing
and advance from related parties to support the new businesses,
settlement of the construction costs of the Solid Warehousing
Centre and DZIT. Due attention will be paid to the capital and debt
markets as well as the latest developments of the Group in order
to ensure the efficient use of financial resources.

Finance costs

The Group had outstanding bank borrowings of HK$1,239 million
as at 31 December 2013 (2012: HK$1,226 million). During the year
ended 31 December 2013, the finance cost charged to profit or loss
was approximately HK$80.9 million (2012: HK$80.1 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Taxation
The Group had no assessable profit subject to Hong Kong Profits
Tax and PRC Enterprise Income Tax for the year.

Exposure to fluctuation in exchanges rate and related hedge
The Group’s cash and cash equivalents are held predominately
in Hong Kong dollar, RMB and US dollar. Operating outgoings
incurred by the Group's subsidiary in the PRC are mainly
denominated in RMB, which usually receives revenue in RMB as
well. Management is of the opinion that the Group's exposure
to foreign exchange rate risks is not significant, and hedging by
means of derivative instruments is considered unnecessary.

Charge on group assets

The Group has provided the Lender with certain of the Group's
fixed assets and certain future non-cancellable operating lease
receivables as collaterals for the banking facilities granted.

Capital commitment

At 31 December 2013, the Group had capital expenditure
contracted for but not provided in the financial statements in
respect of terminal development and acquisition of port and storage
facilities amounted to HK$22 million (2012: HK$21 million).

At 31 December 2013, the Group had capital expenditure not
contracted for but approved by the board and not provided in
the financial statements in respect of terminal development
and acquisition of port and storage facilities amounted to
approximately HK$149 million (2012: HK$145 million).

Contingent liabilities

Financial guarantees issued

As at the balance sheet date, the Company has issued guarantees
to banks in respect of banking facilities granted to its subsidiaries.
The directors do not consider it probable that a claim will be
made against the Company under any of the guarantees. The
maximum liability of the Company at the balance sheet date under
the guarantee is the amount of the facilities drawn down by the
subsidiaries that are covered by the guarantees of HK$3.0 million
(2012: HK$5.4 million). Subsequent to the balance sheet date,
the entire loan drawn under the said banking facilities has been
fully repaid and the guarantees will be cancelled after a retention
period considered by the bank, which is normally six months.

The Company has not recognised any deferred income in respect
of the guarantees as its fair value cannot be reliably measured
using observable market data and its transaction price was HK$Nil
(2012: HK$NiL).

Final dividend

The directors do not recommend any final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2013 (2012: Nill.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEREEAESRHE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. David An, aged 54, joined the Company as Chairman in
July 2002. He has many years of experience in China business
particularly in the provision trading of petroleum products and

petrochemicals, properties investments and developments in
China.

Mr. Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas, aged 54, joined the Company as
Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary in 2005 and was
appointed as Executive Director of the Company in April 2006.
Mr. Fung is an associate member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales and a fellow member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. He has over
30 years of experience in financial management and corporate
finance for multinational corporations and listed companies and
has worked in major international accounting firms.

Ms. Liu Zhijun, aged 46, was appointed as Executive Director of
the Company in April 2006. Ms. Liu is also the Deputy Chairlady
and Financial Controller of Guangdong Petro-Chemicals Company
Limited ("GDPC"], Guangdong (Panyu) Petrochemical Storage
& Transportation Ltd ("GD (Panyu)’) and Reem R MEE AL
BEARAT ([EMEER]) . She joined GDPC in 1997. Prior to
that, she had worked in various government departments and
large State-owned enterprises, including the Audit Office of
Guangdong Province, China Travel Service (Holdings) Hong Kong
Limited, etc. She has more than 20 years of experience in financial
management. Ms. Liu graduated from Zhongshan University in
1989 with a Bachelor's degree in Economics. Ms. Liu also holds
the auditor qualification certificate of speciality and technology
issued by the Ministry of Personnel and National Audit Office of the
People’s Republic of China ["PRC").

Mr. Zhang Lei, aged 48, was appointed as Executive Director of
the Company in August 2007. He joined the Company as Chief
Operating Officer, PRC in 2006. Mr. Zhang graduated from
Dongbei University of Finance and Economics and obtained the
qualification of engineer. Mr. Zhang has many years of experience
in petrochemical industry. He has expertise in petrochemical
specialized technology and is familiar with financial accounting
policy and system of the PRC. Mr. Zhang also has in-depth
knowledge in large petrochemical project management. He had
served China Petrochemical Corporation and held various key
positions such as the chief financial officer of the Singapore
branch, deputy general manager and chief financial officer of the
Hong Kong branch.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Wai Keung, aged 57, joined the Company as Independent
Non-Executive Director in July 2002. He is also the Chairman
of the Audit Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr.
Li graduated from Hong Kong Polytechnic and holds a Master’s
degree in Business Administration from The University of East
Asia. He is also a fellow member of The Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Li has held a number of positions with companies
including Sino Land Company Limited and Henderson Land
Development Company Limited. Mr. Li is now an executive director
and financial controller of GDH Limited and the financial controller
of Guangdong Holdings Limited. Besides, he has been re-
designed from a non-executive director to an executive director of
Guangdong Land Holdings Limited (previously named as Kingway
Brewery Holdings Limited) in March 2012 and is a non-executive
director of Guangdong Investment Limited, an independent non-
executive director of Shenzhen Investment Limited and China
South City Holdings Limited, the shares of which are listed on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Mr. Li was an independent non-
executive director of Hong Long Holdings Limited (now known as
Sun Century Group Limited), the shares of which are listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange, for the period from March 2010 to
May 2011.

Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony, aged 42, joined the Company as
Independent Non-Executive Director in May 2005. He is also the
Chairman of Nomination Committee and a member of the Audit
Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company.
Mr. Chan is a Certified Public Accountant and owns a certified
public accounting practice. He has extensive experience in general
assurance and business advisory services in both Hong Kong and
the PRC. Moreover, Mr. Chan has extensive experience in public
listings in Hong Kong and Singapore, mergers and acquisition as
well as corporate finance. He holds a Master degree in Business
Administration from the Manchester Business School. Mr. Chan
was an independent director of China Nutrifruit Group Limited until
April 2012, the shares of which are listed on the American Stock
Exchange and he resigned as non-executive director of Oriental
City Group Holdings Limited, the shares of which are listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange in August 2013. Mr. Chan is now the
independent non-executive director of Honbridge Holdings Limited
and Wai Chun Mining Industry Group Company Limited, the shares
of which are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREEABHE

Miss Cheung Siu Yuen, Rose, aged 49, graduated from York
University, Canada with a Bachelor of Arts degree in Mass
Communication and Psychology. She further continued her
education in finance at Harvard University, Massachusetts, USA.
Miss Cheung has over 25 years of extensive experience in mining
resources, oil and gas, telecommunications, broadcasting,
multimedia, consumer electronics and financial institutions. She
has held executive positions in listed companies including EPI
(Holdings) Limited, Skyworth Digital Holdings Limited, Cable
& Wireless HKT Limited, Beenz and Satellite Television Asian
Region, STAR TV. Miss Cheung expertise is in business investment,
corporate finance, capital markets, marketing and sales. Miss
Cheung is now the Managing Director of the Maryville Group
Limited with businesses in mining resources, broadcasting and
principal investment.
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PROFILE OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chen Yi You, aged 64, is a director and a deputy general
manager of GD (Panyu). Before he joined GD (Panyu) in 1992, Mr.
Chen was a deputy factory manager for a large petrochemical
company in Guangzhou, the PRC. Mr. Chen has many years of
experience in the management of storage operations for oil and
petrochemical products.

Mr. Li Xiao Hui, aged 45, is a director and a general manger of B/
BIFR. He joined GD (Panyu) in 1994. Mr. Li has extensive knowledge
and experience in technology and operating management of
oil and petrochemicals storage. He also holds a Master degree
of corporate management. He is now fully responsible for the
management of the infrastructure and construction project in
Dongguan.

Mr. Deng Zhi Gang, aged 40, is a director and a deputy general
manager of GD [Panyu). Mr. Deng obtained his Master's degree
in Business Administration from University of San Francisco.
He joined GD (Panyu) in 1996. He has many years of experience
in trading and marketing in the business of storage for oil and
petrochemical products.

Mr. Han Ming, aged 42, is a deputy general manager of GD (Panyul.
Mr. Han graduated from Heilongjiang Institute of Commerce and
majored in oil storage and transportation operation. He joined GD
(Panyu] in 1994. Mr. Han has many years of experience in business
operation and import and export customs of cargoes.

Mr. Cui Ming, aged 57, is a deputy general manager of GD (Panyul.
Before joining GD (Panyu) in 1993, Mr. Cui was the deputy general
manager of sales department of F/G{LE2EE A 7). He was engaged
in the sales of petroleum products for a long time and has
extensive experience in the sales and marketing management of
petroleum products.

Mr. Nie Yu Hua, aged 46, is the deputy financial controller of GD
(Panyu) and a director and a deputy financial controller of F M
. He joined GD (Panyu) in 2006. He is an International Certified
Internal Auditor, a member of the Chinese Institute of Certificate
Public Accountants and has professional accountant qualification
in PRC. He has over 15 years financial management experiences in
large state owned enterprises, and has worked as a senior project
manager in a renowned accounting firm.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SREERE

The Company is committed to a high standard of corporate
governance practices appropriate to the conduct and growth of its
business in compliance with the principles and code provisions
("Code Provisions”] set out in the Corporate Governance Code
("CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
("Stock Exchange”) (“Listing Rules”). The Board is of the view that
throughout the year, the Company has complied with the CG Code
except for the deviations from Code Provisions A.2.1, A.4.1 and E.1.2
which deviations are explained in the relevant part of this report.

The Company regularly reviews its corporate governance practices
to ensure that these continue to meet the requirements of the CG
Code.

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The Company has formalised and adopted written terms on the
division of functions reserved to the Board and delegated to the
management.

The Board provides leadership and approves strategic policies
and plans with a view to enhance shareholder interests while
the day-today operations of the Company are delegated to the
management.

The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters of the
Company, including: approval and monitoring of all policy
matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control and
risk management systems, material transactions [(in particular
those may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
appointment of directors and other significant financial and
operational matters.

All directors have full and timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the Company Secretary, with
a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all applicable rules
and regulations are followed.

Each director is normally able to seek independent professional

advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expense,
upon making request to the Board.
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The day-to-day management, administration and operation
of the Company are delegated to the Chief Executive and the
senior management. The delegated functions and work tasks
are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the
Board prior to any significant transactions entered into by the
abovementioned officers.

The Board has the full support of the Chief Executive and the
senior management to discharge its responsibilities.

Composition

The Board has in its composition a balance of skills and experience
necessary for independent decision making and fulfilling its
business needs.

As at 31 December 2013, the Board comprised seven members,
including four executive directors and three independent non-
executive directors, as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. David An [Chairman, Chief Executive and
Member of Remuneration Committee)

Mr. Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas

Ms. Liu Zhijun

Mr. Zhang Lel

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Li Wai Keung (Chairman of Audit Committee and Remuneration
Committee and Member of Nomination Committee)

Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony [Chairman of Nomination Committee and
Member of Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee)

Miss Cheung Siu Yuen, Rose [Member of Remuneration Committee,
Audit Committee and Nomination Committee)

None of the members of the Board is related to one another.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive directors
with at least one independent non-executive director possessing
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREBRE

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each independent non-executive director in respect of his/her
independence pursuant to the independence guidelines set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
independent non-executive directors are independent.

The independent non-executive directors bring a wide range of
business and financial expertise, experiences and independent
judgement to the Board. Through active participation in Board
meetings, taking the lead in managing issues involving potential
conflict of interests and serving on Board committees, all
independent non-executive directors make various contributions
to the effective direction of the Company.

Appointment and Succession Planning of Directors

The Company has established formal, considered and transparent
procedures for the appointment and succession planning of
directors.

Under Code Provision A.4.1, the non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. Each of the
independent non-executive directors except for Miss Cheung Siu
Yuen, Rose does not have a specific term of appointment.

Miss Cheung Siu Yuen, Rose is engaged on a letter of appointment
for independent non-executive director for a term of 3 years
commencing 31 May 2013.

Pursuant to the Company’'s article of association, all directors of
the Company are subject to retirement by rotation at least once
every three years at the Company’s general meeting and any
directors appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy or as an
addition to the Board shall hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting after his/her appointment and be subject
to re-election at such meeting.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Every newly appointed director will receive comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment,
so as to ensure that he/she has appropriate understanding of the
business and operations of the Company and that he/she is fully
aware of his/her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing
Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.
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Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills
to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed
and relevant. Reading material on relevant topics will be issued
to directors where appropriate. All directors are encouraged to
attend relevant training courses at the Company’s expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, directors attended
seminars and training sessions arranged by various professional
institutes and bodies. In addition, relevant reading materials
including the updates on the business, operations, corporate
governance, legal and regulatory matters have been provided to all
directors for their reference and studying.

Board Meetings

Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

Ten Board meetings were held during the year ended 31 December
2013.

The individual attendance (either in person or through other
electronic means of communication) record of each director
at the meetings of the Board, the Nomination Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee during the
year ended 31 December 2013 is set out below:

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREBRE

EER2BEENFESERR  UER
R B F 2 B R % BRI E RS
HEFSFELABREBEZER - EF8
HERSELBMERE ZHEER - AR
REGIE:S-E SR NN &SIkl
EIIRAE -

BHE-_T—=F+-A=+—RHLFE"
EECHERATRNEEME AT
ZHE g RIEIRE o thoh - BEEE
2B bEER EERREFHEEAZ
ERMEEANTC R ESREH - UHK
F2E R -

EE293
HERERESHELRK
BE-_ZEZ—=F+-A=1+—HILFER

BITTRESEEH -

REE-_FT—=F+-_A=+—HLF
B BESREST - RERLELET - F
e NERZEEEENEALFE (&R
FHRFEBEMEFBMAR) ey

~

_|

Attendance/Number of Meetings held
during the tenure of directorship

RESHEAALE/ CETEERY

Annual
Nomination Remuneration Audit General
Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
Directors Bz Eze [REZRE HMZEE BNZEEE RRBEAS
Executive Directors HiTEE
Mr. David An [Chairman of the LS
Board and Chief Executive] (BEESFERTTHAH) 910 NIANER N NATER 0/1
Mr. Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas BEHEE 1010 NATER  NATER  NATEA N
Ms. Liu Zhijun AFELL 1010 NATER  NATER NATER N
Mr. Zhang Lei RERE 1010 NATER  NATER  NATEA 0/1
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUHHTEE
Mr. Li Wai Keung TEMEE 10/10 303 N 22 N
Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony RIREEE 0/10 33 1/1 22 111
Mr. Liu Jian RrER=E—=F
(resigned on 31 May 2013] LA=t—REHL) 34 1/2 /1 111 111
Miss Cheung Siu Yuen, Rose BN ME(R=5-=F
(appointed on 31 May 2013) AA=T-HEZH) b/6 101 N/ATER N NATMEFR
Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held SREMESSERI  FREETERT

meetings with the independent non-executive directors without the
presence of executive directors during the year.
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Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all directors at
least 14 days before the meetings. For other Board and committee
meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

Agenda and Board papers together with all appropriate, complete
and reliable information are sent to all directors at least 3 days
before each Board meeting or committee meeting to keep the
directors apprised of the latest developments and financial
position of the Company and to enable them to make informed
decisions. The Board and each director also have separate and
independent access to the senior executives whenever necessary.

The Company Secretary is responsible to take and keep minutes
of all Board meetings and committee meetings. Draft minutes are
normally circulated to directors for comment within a reasonable
time after each meeting and the final version is open for directors’
inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction,
which involves a conflict of interests for a substantial shareholder
or a director, will be considered and dealt with by the Board
at a duly convened Board meeting. The Company’s Articles of
Association also contain provisions requiring directors to abstain
from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings for
approving transactions in which such directors or any of their
associates have a material interest.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted a board diversity policy (the "Policy”) on
29 August 2013. A summary of this Policy, together with the
measureable objectives set for implementing this Policy, and the
progress made towards achieving those objectives are disclosed as
below.

Summary of the Board Diversity Policy

When determining the composition of the Board, the Company will
consider board diversity in terms of, among other things, gender,
age, experience, cultural and educational background, expertise,
skills and know-how. All Board appointments will be based on
merits, and candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Measurable Objectives

Selection of candidates for Board membership will be based on a
range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, experience, cultural and educational background, expertise,
skills and know-how.
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Monitoring and Reporting

The Nomination Committee will disclose the composition of the
Board annually in the Corporate Governance Report and monitor
the implementation of this Policy.

The Nomination Committee will review this Policy, as appropriate,
to ensure the effectiveness of this Policy. The Nomination
Committee will discuss any revisions that may be required, and
recommend any such revisions to the Board for consideration and
approval.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises seven directors.
Two of them are women. Three of them are independent non-
executive directors, thereby promoting critical review and control
of the management process. The Board is also characterized by
significant diversity, whether considered in terms of gender, age,
experience, cultural and educational background, expertise, skills
and know-how.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of the Chairman and
Chief Executive should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual.

The Company supports the division of responsibility to ensure
the balance of power and authority. However, in view of the
fact that the Group’'s core business is carried out by the PRC
subsidiaries, and that the Chief Operating Officer, China (de facto
Chief Executive), who managed the core business through those
subsidiaries, is a separate person, the Board considers there is no
necessity to separate the Chief Executive at the Group level.

The Board has full confidence in Mr. David An and believes that
his appointment of the posts of Chairman and Chief Executive is
beneficial to the business prospects of the Company.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the
Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and Audit
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established with
defined written terms of reference. The terms of reference of the
Board committees are posted on the Company’s website and Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited’'s website and are available
to shareholders upon request.
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The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources
to discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are
able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances, at the Company’s expenses.

Nomination Committee

All the three independent non-executive directors are the
members of the Nomination Committee and Mr. Chan Chun Wai,
Tony is the chairman of the committee.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and succession
planning of directors, and assessment of the independence of the
independent non-executive directors.

The Nomination Committee carries out the process of selecting
and recommending candidates for directorships by making
reference to the skills, experience, professional knowledge,
personal integrity and time commitments of such individuals, the
Company’s needs and other relevant statutory requirements and
regulations. An external recruitment agency may be engaged to
carry out the recruitment and selection process when necessary.

The Nomination Committee convened three meetings during the
year ended 31 December 2013 to (i) ensure that the Board has a
balance of expertise, skills and experience appropriate to meet
the requirements of the business of the Company; [ii) to review
and recommend the re-appointment of directors standing for re-
election at the Company's 2013 annual general meeting; and {iii)
to recommend the appointment of independent non-executive
directors to the Board.

Remuneration Committee

The Chairman of the Board and the three independent non-
executive directors are the members of the Remuneration
Committee and Mr. Li Wai Keung is the chairman of the
committee.

The primary objectives of the Remuneration Committee include
reviewing and making recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration packages of individual executive directors and
senior management, the remuneration policy and structure for all
directors and senior management; and establishing transparent
procedures for developing such remuneration policy and
structure to ensure that no director or any of his/her associates
will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration, which
remuneration will be determined by reference to the performance
of the individual and the Company as well as market practice and
conditions.
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The Human Resources Department is responsible for collection
and administration of the human resources data and making
recommendations to the Remuneration Committee for
consideration. The Remuneration Committee consults the
Chairman and/or the Chief Executive of the Company about these
recommendations on remuneration policy and structure and
remuneration packages.

The Remuneration Committee met once to review and make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of the executive directors and senior executives during the year
ended 31 December 2013.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises the three independent non-
executive directors (including two independent non-executive
directors who possess the appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise] and
Mr. Li Wai Keung is the chairman of the committee. None of
the members of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the
Company’s existing external auditors.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include the following:

(a) To review the financial statements and reports and consider
any significant or unusual items before submission to the
Board.

(b) To review the relationship with the external auditors by
reference to the work performed by the auditors, their fees
and terms of engagement, and make recommendation to the
Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of
external auditors.

(c) To review the Company’s financial reporting system and risk
management systems.

(d) To review the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
measures, including the functions of account and financial
reporting, reviewing the adequacy of the Group’s human
resources, staff qualifications and experiences, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting functions.

(e} To review arrangements by which employees of the
Company may, in confidence, raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other
matters.
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The Audit Committee is provided with sufficient resources to
discharge its duties and has access to independent professional
advice if considers necessary.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31
December 2013 to (i) review audited annual financial results for
the year ended 31 December 2012 and unaudited interim financial
results for the half-year ended 30 June 2013; (i) to review financial
reporting, internal control and compliance procedures; and [iii)
to review the scope of work and make recommendations on the
appointment of the auditors.

There is no material uncertainty relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in
the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Board reviewed
and monitored the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance, training and continuous professional development of
directors and reviewing the Company’'s compliance with the code
and disclosure in this report.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

All the directors represented the senior management of the
Company. Further particulars regarding directors’ remuneration
and the five highest paid employees as required to be disclosed
pursuant to Appendix 16 to the listing rules are set out in notes 7
and 8 to the financial statements, respectively.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers [the "Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry has been made of all the directors and all of them

have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2013.
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The Company has also established written guidelines on terms
no less exacting than the Model Code (the "Employees Written
Guidelines”] for securities transactions by employees who are
likely to possess inside information of the Company.

No incident of non-compliance of the Employees Written
Guidelines by the employees was noted by the Company.

Responsibilities in respect of the Financial Statements and
Auditors’ Remuneration

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports,
announcements and other financial disclosures required under
the Listing Rules and other regulatory requirements.

The directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2013.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in
the “Independent Auditor’'s Report” on pages 37 to 38.

The remuneration paid to the external auditors of the Company in
respect of audit services and non-audit services for the year ended
31 December 2013 was disclosed on page 73.

Internal Controls

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate internal
control system to safeguard shareholder investments and
Company assets, and reviewing its effectiveness on an annual
basis.

The Company has maintained a tailored governance structure
with defined lines of responsibility and appropriate delegation of
responsibility and authority to the senior management.

The Group’s internal control framework, covering all material
controls including financial, operational and compliance controls
is established. The internal control framework also provides for
identification and management of risk.

The management is accountable to the Board for operating
and monitoring the system of internal control and for providing
assurance to the Board that it has done so. The Board forms its
own view on effectiveness after due and careful enquiry based on
the information and assurances provided to it.
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During the year under review, the Board has conducted a review of
the effectiveness of the internal control system of the Group.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard the interests and rights of shareholders, a separate
resolution is proposed for each substantially separate issue
at shareholder meetings, including the election of individual
directors. All resolutions proposed at the shareholders” meetings
are voted by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules. The poll results
are also posted on the websites of Hong Kong Exchanges and
Clearing Limited and the Company immediately after the relevant
shareholders’ meetings.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting by Shareholders
Pursuant to article 72 of the Company’s articles of association,
general meetings shall be convened on the written requisition
of any two or more members of the Company deposited at the
principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong or,
in the event that the Company ceases to have such a principal
place of business, the registered office specifying the objects of
the meeting and signed by the requisitionists, provided that such
requisitionists held as at the date of deposit of the requisition not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which
carries the right of voting at general meetings of the Company.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting, the requisitionists
themselves or any of them representing more than one-half of the
total voting rights of all of them, may convene the extraordinary
general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as
that in which meetings may be convened by the Board provided
that any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration
of three months from the date of deposit of the requisition, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to them by the
Company.
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Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

There are no provisions in the company’s articles of association
or the Cayman Islands Companies Law for shareholders to move
new resolutions at general meetings. Shareholders who wish
to move a resolution may request the Company to convene a
general meeting in accordance with the procedures set out in the
preceding paragraph.

As regards proposing a person for election as a director of the
Company, please refer to the procedures posted on the Company’'s
website.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board
For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company.

Note: The Company will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous
enquiries.

Contact Details
Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned
above to the following:
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The shareholders” meetings of the Company provide an opportunity
for communication between the shareholders and the Board. The
Chairman of the Board, all independent non-executive directors,
and the chairmen of all Board committees (or their delegates) and
where applicable, the independent Board committee, are available
at the general meetings to meet shareholders and answer their
enquiries.

The Chairman of the Board and some of the directors were unable
to attend the annual general meeting held on 22 May 2013 due
to business engagement. They will use their best endeavours to
attend all future shareholders” meetings of the Company.

During the year under review, the Company has not made any
changes to its articles of association. The Company places great
emphasis to enhance communications and relationships with its
investors as the Company’s policy to maintain timely and effective
communications with their shareholders. This is crucial aspect
of good corporate governance, and part of the statutory and
regulatory regime. Designated senior management maintains
regular dialogue with existing shareholders and potential
institutional investors and analysts to keep them abreast of the
Company’s developments. Enquiries from investors are dealt with
in an informative and timely manner.

To promote effective communication, the Company also maintains
a website at www.hansenergy.com, where extensive information
and updates on the Company's business developments and
operations, financial information, corporate governance practices
and other information are posted.
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The directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report and
the audited financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2013.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 13 to the
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 are
set out in the consolidated income statement on page 39.

Taking into account of the cash requirement for the repayment
of bank loan of the Group, the directors do not recommend the
payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2013 (2012: Nil]. However, the Board of Directors will determine
dividend distribution policies once the Group has secured stable
income from the operations in coming years.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details in movement in share capital of the Company are set out in
note 22 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

The amounts and particulars of material transfers to and from
reserves of the Company and of the Group during the year are set
out on the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and in
note 22 to the financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES
At 31 December 2013, the Company’'s reserve available for
distribution amounted to 173 million (2012: HK$177 million).
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DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive directors

Mr. David An (Chairman)

Mr. Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas
Ms. Liu Zhijun

Mr. Zhang Leli

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Li Wai Keung
Mr. Chan Chun Wai, Tony
Miss Cheung Siu Yuen, Rose
(appointed on 31 May 2013)
Mr. Liu Jian
(resigned on 31 May 2013]

Pursuant to Article 116 of the Company’s articles of association,
Mr. Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas and Mr. Zhang Lei shall retire by
rotation and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

Pursuant to Article 99 of the Company’s articles of association,
Miss Cheung Siu Yuen, Rose shall hold office until the forthcoming
annual general meeting, and being eligible, offer herself for re-
election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Miss Cheung Siu Yuen, Rose has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from 31 May 2013, subject to, inter alia, retirement
from office by rotation at least once every three years and re-
election in accordance with the Company's Articles of Association.

The term of office of each of the independent non-executive
directors is the period up to his retirement as required by the
Company's articles of association.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors being proposed
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2013, the interests and short positions of
directors of the Company and their associates in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the "SFO"]] which have been
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the "Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required
to be kept pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the "Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”) were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

Number of shares
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Mr. David An * Corporate A 7] 2,548,203,980 Nil £ 68.27% Nil 4=
HERAE (Note Bf#E 1)

Personal {EA 218,390,000 Nil 4% 5.85% Nil &

Note: BIaE -

1. The shares are held directly as to 209,773,980 shares by Extreme
Wise Investments Ltd (“Extreme Wise”) and 2,338,430,000 shares
by Vand Petro-Chemicals (BVI] Company Limited ("Vand Petro-
Chemicals”), both of which are wholly-owned by Mr. David An. By
virtue of SFO, Mr. David An is deemed to have corporate interest in
the 2,548,203,980 shares.

Mr. David An, being a director of the Company, is also acting as the
Chief Executive of the Company.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
BEEHE

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, none of the
directors of the Company and their associates had any interest
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations which had
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO or which were required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein or which were required, pursuant to the Model
Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES
Other than the share option scheme detailed in note 21 to the
financial statements, at no time during the year was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable
the directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debts securities (including debentures)
of, the Company or any other body corporate and none of the
directors, their spouses or children under the age of 18, had any
rights to subscribe for securities of the Company, or had exercised
any such rights.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN CONTRACTS

There were no contracts of significance to which the Company, or
any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly and indirectly,
subsisting at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

There were no transactions which were required to be disclosed
as connected transactions in accordance with the requirements of
the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to a high standard of corporate
governance. The Company’'s corporate governance practices
are based on the principles and the code provisions ("Code
Provision”) as set out in the Corporate Governance Code ("CG
Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules. The Company
regularly reviews its corporate governance practices to ensure
that these continue to meet the requirements of the CG Code.
Throughout the year 2013, the Company has complied with the CG
Code except for the deviations from the Code Provisions A.2.1, A.4.1
and E.1.2.. For details, please refer to the Corporate Governance
Report on pages 16 to 28.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN THE SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2013, shareholders (other than directors of the
Company) who had interests and short positions in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which have been disclosed to
the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company

Number of shares

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
BEEHE

FERRARAQRBARAE P 2EERAR

BHE_Z—=F+"_A=+—RH BRR(T
BRARTER)RARARSD MAERND
o BEREE S MR G EXVERE 2K
FINMEAARRRWE et ORE - X
ERENA R RIRIEE S MG 1525336
FREFEZ ERMAZESEIARIT

AARBREE0.1I0BTZEER
Approximate percentage to

the issued share capital of
the Company

R EE ERRBERTREZHMOBFILE
Name of shareholder Long Positions Short positions Long Positions Short positions
EEHA HE e HRE e
Mr. David An B2 %4 (Note KiFE 1) 2,766,593,980 Nil £ 74.12% Nil £
Vand Petro-Chemicals (Note BffzE 1) 2,338,430,000 Nil £ 62.65% Nil &
Dubai World Corporation (Note [z 2] 370,000,000 Nil £ 9.91% Nil £
Extreme Wise (Note FfizE 1) 209,773,980 Nil 4% 5.62% Nil 4%
Notes: BRE -

1. The shares are held directly as to 218,390,000 shares by Mr. David
An personally, as to 209,773,980 shares by Extreme Wise and
2,338,430,000 shares by Vand Petro-Chemicals, both companies
being wholly-owned by Mr. David An. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. David
An is deemed to be interested in the 2,766,593,980 shares. Mr. David
An is a director of Extreme Wise, Vand Petro-Chemicals and the
Company.

2. The shares are held directly by Pony HK World, indirectly wholly-
owned by Dubai World Corporation.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, the Company
has not been notified by any persons (other than directors or
the chief executive of the Company] who had interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which
would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336
of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed on 16 December 2002,
the Company adopted the Old Share Option Scheme (the "2002
Share Option Scheme”] which was expired on 15 December 2012.
Under the Old Share Option Scheme, the Company had granted
72,400,000 options, all of which had lapsed and no option was
outstanding.

In order to enable the continuity of the share option scheme of the
Company, the Company adopted the New Share Option Scheme (the
“2012 Share Option Scheme”] pursuant to an ordinary resolution
passed on 28 December 2012. The purpose of the New Share
Option Scheme is to enable the Company to recruit and retain
high-caliber employees and attract resources that are available
to the Group and to provide the Company with a means of giving
incentive to, rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/or
providing benefits to such persons who contribute or may bring
benefit to the Group. The scheme remains in force for a period
of 10 years from adoption of such scheme and expires on 27
December 2022.

Under the 2012 Share Option Scheme, the board of directors
of the Company (the “directors”] may at their discretion grant
options to any eligible participant including any employee, director,
consultant, advisor, agent, business affiliate, business partner,
joint venture partner, strategic partner, or any supplier or provider
of goods or services to the Company or any subsidiaries of the
Company as may be determined by the directors from time to time
to subscribe for the shares of the Company (the “shares”).

Options granted must be taken up within 21 days of the date of
grant, upon payment of HK$1 per option. The maximum number
of shares in respect to which options may be granted under the
scheme shall not exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the
Company on the date of adopting the scheme. The limit may be
refreshed at any time provided that the new limit must not be in
aggregate exceed 10% of the issued share capital of the Company
as at the date of the shareholders’ approval in general meeting.
However, the total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the scheme and any other scheme of the Company must
not in aggregate exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time to
time. The maximum number of shares in respect of which options
may be granted to any individual in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the shares in issue on the last date of such 12-month
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period unless approval of the shareholders of the Company has
been obtained in accordance with the Listing Rules. Options
granted to substantial shareholders or independent non-executive
directors in excess of issued share capital of the Company or with
a value in excess of HK$5 million must be approved in advance by
the shareholders of the Company.

Options may be exercised at any time from date of grant of the
share option to the 10th anniversary of the date of grant as may
be determined by the directors. The exercise price is determined
by the directors, and will not be less than the higher of the closing
price per share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets on the date of the grant of the options and the average
closing price per share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the date of the grant of the options.

MAIOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the aggregate turnover attributable to the Group's
five largest customers comprised approximately 29.5% of the
Group's total turnover and the turnover attributable to the Group’s
largest customer were approximately 4.4% of the Group's total
turnover. The aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s five
largest suppliers comprised approximately 38.5% of the Group’'s
total purchases and the purchases attributable to the Group's
largest supplier were approximately 18.4% of the Group’s total
purchases.

Saved as disclosed above, none of the directors, their associates or
any shareholder which, to the knowledge of the directors, owned
more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital had any
interest in the share capital of any of the five largest customers or
suppliers of the Group.

BORROWINGS
Details of movements in the Group’s bank loans during the year
are set out in note 17 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association although there is no restriction against such
rights under the laws in the Cayman Islands.
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EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had a workforce of
approximately 450 employees (2012: 440), 436 (2012: 430) of which
worked for the terminals. Every year, the Group devises a budget
which states total salary and bonus plan for the year to encourage
the Group’s employees to contribute their best efforts and to make
maximum economic benefits to the Group. In accordance with the
relevant government regulations in the PRC, the Group is required
to cover social insurance, including but not limited to retirement,
medical, workman compensation and unemployment insurance as
well as housing fund for every qualified employee in the PRC. With
these insurance policies and staff benefits, the Group hopes to
provide a reasonable welfare for each qualified employee.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY’S
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed
securities.

PUBLIC FLOAT

For the year ended 31 December 2013, based on the information
that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge
of the directors, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float under the Listing Rules.

LITIGATION

As at 31 December 2013, there were no material contingent
liabilities in respect of outstanding litigation or legal proceedings
that need to be disclosed.

AUDITORS

KPMG retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as
auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board
David An

Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

18 M % B R

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS
OF HANS ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
[Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hans
Energy Company Limited ("the Company”] and its subsidiaries
(together “the Group”] set out on pages 39 to 107, which comprise
the consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 December
2013, the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement
for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
are free from material misstatement.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B HE RS

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give a
true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the
Group as at 31 December 2013 and of the Group’s loss and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared
in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

25 March 2014
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

mEEER

for the year ended 31 December 2013 #iZE —T—=F+_-_A=+—HIFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TE57R)

2013 2012

—E—=F —E—F

Note $’000 $'000

B 5T T T

Turnover [=E 4 3 220,421 204,019

Direct costs and operating expenses ~ EEKA R EE R (195,546) (192,529)

24,875 11,490

Other net (loss)/income Hib (F518), W55 4 (265) 3,028

Administrative expenses THER (59,199) (59,055)

Loss from operations REEE (34,589) (44,537)

Finance costs B 7GR AR 5(a) (80,855) (80,071)

Loss before taxation BRERIEE 5 (115,444) (124,608)

Income tax TSt 6(a) 584 573

Loss for the year FREE (114,860) (124,035)

Attributable to: PEqh -

Equity shareholders of the Company ZAN/NS] (108,061) (116,713)

Non-controlling interests FEPEI R (6,799) (7,322)

Loss for the year FREE (114,860) (124,035)
Loss per share BREE 10

- basic -ER (2.90 centsfll)  (3.13 centsflli)

- diluted -EE (2.90 centsflil)  (3.13 centsflll)

The notes on pages 46 to 107 form part of these financial

statements.

ERRRERAHE

39

Rz —H5 -

“E-ZFFR

FN L6107 H 2 M FE RAAMKIL F H 155



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HmEeEZHEBER

for the year ended 31 December 2013 HZE T —=F+-_A=+—HILFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LATTIR)

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
$°000 $°000
Fx T
Loss for the year FREE (114,860) (124,035)
Other comprehensive income for the year: FRAEMEEWE :
ltern that may be reclassified subsequently to ~ E{&AJREEF D 4B
consolidated income statement: ZiFEeEmRKMIER
- Exchange differences on translation of —HREME QR Bk
financial statements of subsidiaries ZIEHZH 14,064 (386)
Total comprehensive income for the year FRAXHEHKZEE (100,796) (124,421)
Attributable to: PEAL -
Equity shareholders of the Company ZIN/NE])i) 323 (95,141) (117,068)
Non-controlling interests SRR (5,655) (7,353)
Total comprehensive income for the year FAXEKZLE (100,796) (124,421)

The notes on pages 46 to 107 form part of these financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

REEERER

at 31 December 2013 R=FE—=F+=-A=+—8H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TE57R)

2013 2012
—E—=F T
Note $’000 $'000
MIEE T FT
Non-current assets FREBEE
Fixed assets BT EE 11
- Property, plant and equipment — Y% - ENMEE 1,384,185 1,463,173
- Interests in land held for own use —BEEEHERIEER
under operating leases 2 TR 11(b) 273,276 272,517
Prepayments for construction costs BN A 2 TR RUR 27,399 15,480
Intangible assets B EE 12 2,413 2,606
1,687,273 1,753,776
Current assets REEE
Interests in land held for own use RIBGEHERFES A
under operating leases 2 TR 11(b) 7,823 7,587
Consumable parts JEFE M 16,881 18,084
Trade and other receivables B 5N E WA 14 43,417 35,781
Current tax recoverable NHAFER L IE 18(a) 19,161 18,580
Cash and cash equivalents BeMReFHEER 15 56,993 73,571
144,275 153,603
Current liabilities mEEE
Other payables and accruals Hitbh N HIBRFEER 16 55,465 67,154
Bank loans RITEN 17 28,439 52,267
__________ 83,904 119421
Net current assets REBEETFE 60,371 34,182
Total assets less current liabilities REERTDEME 1,747,644 1,787,958
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
mEEEARX

at 31 December 2013 R=F—=F+=-A=+—8°
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (BA#T31R)

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——4F
Note $°000 $°000
BsE T T
Non-current liabilities kRBAE
Deferred tax liabilities FERIBEE 18(b) 6,276 6,660
Bank loans RITER 17 1,210,887 1,174,149
Amounts due to related parties RS REEE 5 2 508 19 210,764 186,636
1,427,927 1367445
NET ASSETS EEFE 319,717 420,513
CAPITAL AND RESERVES ERR B
Share capital A& 22(b) 373,264 373,264
Reserves 1 (87,988) 7,153
Total equity attributable to equity PN
shareholders of the Company PR AR 285,276 380,417
Non-controlling interests IR 34,441 40,096
TOTAL EQUITY R 319,717 420,513

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 25

March 2014.

David An
E

Chairman

FE

The notes on pages 46 to 107 form part of these financial

statements.
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BALANCE SHEET
p: ==
BEEAER

at 31 December 2013 R=F—=F+=-A=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TE57R)

2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
Note $’000 $'000
B 5T Fx FT

Non-current asset FREBEE
Interests in subsidiaries SGIEVNGIPA: 3 13 573,682 576,854

Current assets REEE
Prepayments and other receivables TR FRA N B A FE MR IR 14 4,305 5,079
Cash and cash equivalents nekHeFEER 15 28 32
4,333 5111
Current liability REAE

Other payables and accruals H T FRIE TR B A 16 2,102 2,102
Net current assets re&EE®&E 00 2231 3,009
Total assets less current liability BEERRBERE 575,913 579,863

Non-current liability FEREBEE
Amount due to a related party e — % B 5 708 19 30,000 30,000
NET ASSETS EERE 545,913 549,863

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEARL B
Share capital [N 22(b) 373,264 373,264
Reserves 1 22(a) 172,649 176,599
TOTAL EQUITY R 545,913 549,863

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 25 M- ZE—NF=A -+ HBEESFSHE

March 2014. KT o
David An Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas
BiE BEH
Chairman Executive Director
B HITEE

The notes on pages 46 to 107 form part of these financial HRF46F 1078 2 MisEAMEMR I SR
statements. 7D o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
RERERBER

for the year ended 31 December 2013 HZE T —=F+-_A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LATTIR)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

KARRRELER
Non-
Share Share Special  Translation Statutory  Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
RE  RGEE  BHRE  EXRE  EERE BitEiE AR FERER it 4
$000 $000 $000 $'000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $'000
T T i e i T T i A
Balanceat1January2012 ~ R=Z--%
-B-Rz&s 373,264 710,477 (251,428) 104,864 31,947 (671,639) 497,485 L7449 544,934
Changes in equity for 2012:  —Z—-ZF
B2
Loss for the year FRER - - - - - (116,713} (116,713) (73220 (124,039)
Other comprehensive income £ 2EM3 - - - (355) - - (355 31) (386)
Total comprehensive income 2 EM &A% - - - (355) - (116,713 (117,068 (7353 (124,421)
Balance at 31 December 2012 R=F--F+=§
and 1 January 2013 =t+-8k
-g-z5-f
-BR&8 373,264 710,477 (251,428) 104,509 31,947 (588,352) 380,417 40,096 420,513
Changes in equity for 2013:  —Z—=%
BE29:
Loss for the year EREE - - - - - (108,061)  (108,061) (6,799)  (114,860)
Other comprehensive income 12N - - - 12,920 - - 12,920 1144 14,064
Total comprehensive income 2 AMEEE - - - 12,920 - (108,061)  (95,141) (5,655)  (100,796)
Balance at 31 December 2013 W=ZE-=%£+=f
=t-AzER 313,26 TI0477  (251,428) 117,429 31,947 (696,413) 285,276 34,441 319,17

The notes on pages 46 to 107 form part of these financial R F4E107E 2 Kl AEMK I FE R
statements. RZ—E °
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

n _\éIﬁﬁsﬁéﬁ

for the year ended 31 December 2013 #iZE —T—=F+_-_A=+—HIFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA TE57R)

2013 2012
—E—=F T
Note $°000 $°000
liEss Fr T
Operating activities BT
Cash generated from operations REXBPIFIRE® 15(b) 94,740 75,381
People’'s Republic of China ("PRC") B EARAME
Enterprise Income Tax paid (MBI DR EEPREN = (4,779)
Net cash generated from EETBHMEESESR
operating activities 94,740 70602
Investing activities REEE
Capital expenditure BARFE (15,350) (33,215
Interest received BUHE 672 755
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEME - BEREHEZ
plant and equipment FriS /18 897 17
Net cash used in investing activities RETHFTABE S EE ~hgge (32,443
Financing activities RMEEE
Interest paid EARFLE (81,069) (79,627)
Advances from a related party B BT 44,667 -
Repayment to a related party 1;5&%%75?7\15 (37,553) -
Proceeds from new bank loan FTERITERFTIS IR 25,035 49,165
Repayment of bank loan BERITER (49,967) (2,400
Net cash used in financing activities BEEB AR EFE _ lesgeT) (32,862
Net (decreasel/increase in cash and iﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁgfﬁlﬁ B
cash equivalents W), hnEEE (17,928) 5,297
Cash and cash equivalents at R—A—BZHRER
1 January RE&EEER 73,571 68,281
Effect of foreign exchange rate HEERBE 2 FE
changes 1,350 (7)
Cash and cash equivalents at R+=—A=+—H=2
31 December ReRHRLEEER 15(a) 56,993 73,571

The notes on pages 46 to 107 form part of these financial

statements.

BN L6107 H Z M FE RAARK I F H 155

Rz —H5 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTSRRI AL

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (JAZBLHIR -

1

SATAERIN)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@)

(b)

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs"], which
collective term includes all applicable individual Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards ["HKASs") and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA"), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Listing Rules”). A summary of the significant
accounting policies adopted by the Group is set out
below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Note 1(c) provides information on any changes
in accounting policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2013 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
financial statements is the historical cost basis.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.
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1

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

B RS R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (IAFTTHIR + BEEAEERSIN)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(b) Basis of preparation of the financial statements

(c)

(continued)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application
of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and major sources of estimation uncertainty
are discussed in note 2.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and
amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for
the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Of these, the following developments are
relevant to the Group's financial statements:

- Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements - Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income

- HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

- HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities

- HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
Bup e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BAFTTHIR + BEERERRSN)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(c) Changes in accounting policies (continued)

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period [note 30). Impacts of the adoption of
these new or amended HKFRSs are discussed below:

Amendments to HKAS 1, Presentation of financial
statements - Presentation of items of other
comprehensive income

The amendments require entities to present separately
the items of other comprehensive income that would
be reclassified to consolidated income statement in
the future if certain conditions are met from those that
would never be reclassified to consolidated income
statement. The presentation of other comprehensive
income in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income in these financial statements has been modified
accordingly.

HKFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

HKFRS 10 replaces the requirements in HKAS 27,
Consolidated and separate financial statements relating
to the preparation of consolidated financial statements
and HK-SIC 12 Consolidation - Special purpose entities.
It introduces a single control model to determine whether
aninvestee should be consolidated, by focusing on
whether the entity has power over the investee, exposure
or rights to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and the ability to use its power to affect the
amount of those returns.

As aresult of the adoption of HKFRS 10, the Group
has changed its accounting policy with respect to
determining whether it has control over an investee. The
adoption does not change any of the control conclusions
reached by the Group in respect of its involvement with
other entities as at 1 January 2013.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

B RS R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (IAFTTHIR + BEEAEERSIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(c)

(d)

Changes in accounting policies (continued)
HKFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities

HKFRS 12 brings together into a single standard all the
disclosure requirements relevant to an entity’s interests
in subsidiaries, joint arrangements, associates and
unconsolidated structured entities. The disclosures
required by HKFRS 12 are generally more extensive than
those previously required by the respective standards.
To the extent that the requirements are applicable to the
Group, the Group has provided those disclosures in note
13.

HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement

HKFRS 13 replaces existing guidance in individual
HKFRSs with a single source of fair value measurement
guidance. HKFRS 13 also contains extensive disclosure
requirements about fair value measurements for both
financial instruments and non-financial instruments.
To the extent that the requirements are applicable to
the Group, the Group has provided those disclosures in
note 23. The adoption of HKFRS 13 does not have any
material impact on the fair value measurements of the
Group’s assets and liabilities.

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The
Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. When assessing whether the
Group has power, only substantive rights (held by the
Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flows
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
Bup e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BAFTTHIR + BEERERRSN)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(d) Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests (continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to the
Company, and in respect of which the Group has not
agreed any additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group as a whole
having a contractual obligation in respect of those
interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect
to measure any non-controlling interests either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests” proportionate
share of the subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated balance sheet within equity, separately
from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of
the Company. Non-controlling interests in the results of
the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated
income statement and the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total
profit or loss and total comprehensive income for the
year between non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company. Loans from holders
of non-controlling interests and other contractual
obligations towards these holders are presented as
financial liabilities in the consolidated balance sheet in
accordance with notes 1(l) or (o] depending on the nature
of the liability.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions, whereby adjustments are made
to the amounts of controlling and non-controlling
interests within consolidated equity to reflect the change
in relative interests, but no adjustments are made to
goodwill and no gain or loss is recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, itis
accounted for as a disposal of the entire interest in
that subsidiary, with a resulting gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as
the fair value on initial recognition of a financial asset
or, when appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a

subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 1(h]).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
g e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (IAFTTHIR + BEEAEERSIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 EREHBEE)
(e) Fixed assets (e) BIEEE

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see
note 1(h]].

The cost of self-constructed items of property, plant
and equipment includes the cost of materials, direct
labour, the initial estimate, where relevant, of the costs
of dismantling and removing the items and restoring
the site on which they are located, and an appropriate
proportion of production overheads and borrowing costs
(see note 1(s)).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal
of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of retirement or
disposal.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their residual value,
if any, using the straight-line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

- Buildings 30 years
- Dock and storage facilities 5-30 years
- Office equipment 5-10 years
- Motor vehicles 5-10vyears

- Leasehold improvements Over the term

of the lease

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is
allocated on a reasonable basis between the parts and
each part is depreciated separately. Both the useful life
of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed
annually.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
Bup e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BA#SITSI7R

1

SAEAEERIN)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

)

(9

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation (where
the estimated useful life is finite] and impairment losses
(see note 1(h)). Amortisation of club memberships is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives of 17 to 20 years.

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group
Assets that are held by Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership are classified as being
held under finance leases. Leases which do not
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to the Group are classified as operating
leases, except that land held for own use under
an operating lease, the fair value of which cannot
be measured separately from the fair value of a
building situated thereon at the inception of the
lease, is accounted for as being held under a
finance lease, unless the building is also clearly
held under an operating lease. For these purposes,
the inception of the lease is the time that the lease
was first entered into by the Group, or taken over
from the previous lessee.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

B RS R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (IAFTTHIR + BEEAEERSIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(g) Leased assets (continued)

(ii)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments
over the accounting periods covered by the lease
term, except where an alternative basis is more
representative of the pattern of benefits to be
derived from the leased asset. Lease incentives
received are recognised in profit or loss as an
integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit
or loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating
lease is amortised on a straight-line basis over the
period of the lease term.

(h) Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of receivables

Current and non-current receivables that are
stated at cost or amortised cost are reviewed at
each balance sheet date to determine whether
there is objective evidence of impairment. Objective
evidence of impairment includes observable data
that comes to the attention of the Group about one
or more of the following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- abreach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;
and

- significant changes in the technological,

market, economic or legal environment that
have an adverse effect on the debtor.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

BIRS R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BAFTTHIR + BEERERRSN)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

Impairment of receivables (continued)

If any such evidence exists, the impairment
loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value
of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition of these assets), where the effect of
discounting is material. This assessment is made
collectively where these financial assets share
similar risk characteristics, such as similar past
due status, and have not been individually assessed
as impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets
which are assessed for impairment collectively are
based on historical loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to the collective
group.

[fin asubsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be linked objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the impairment
loss is reversed through profit or loss. A reversal of
an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s
carrying amount exceeding that which would have
been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

B RS R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (IAFTTHIR + BEEAEERSIN)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Impairment of receivables (continued)
Impairment losses are written off against
the corresponding assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised in respect of
trade debtors and bills receivable included within
trade and other receivables, whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote. In this case,
the impairment losses for doubtful debts are
recorded using an allowance account. When the
Group is satisfied that recovery is remote, the
amount considered irrecoverable is written off
against trade debtors and bills receivable directly
and any amounts held in the allowance account
relating to that debt are reversed. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously charged to
the allowance account are reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly are recognised in
profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information
arereviewed at each balance sheet date to
identify indications that the following assets may
be impaired or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:
- fixed assets;

- intangible assets;

- non-current prepayments; and

- investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
balance sheet.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

BIRS R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BAFTTHIR + BEERERRSN)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(h) Impairment of assets (continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets (continued]
If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the
greater of its fair value less costs of disposal
and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using the pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit
or loss if the carrying amount of an asset, or
the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-
generating units are allocated to reduce the
carrying amount of the assets in the unit (or
group of units) on a pro rata basis, except
that the carrying value of an asset will not be
reduced below its individual fair value less
costs of disposal [if measurable] or value in use
(if determinable).

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.
A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to
the asset’s carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss
been recognised in prior years. Reversals of
impairment losses are credited to the profit
or loss in the year in which the reversals are
recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

B RS R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (IAFTTHIR + BEEAEERSIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(1)

0)

(k)

M

Consumable parts

Consumable parts held for repair and maintenance
purposes by the Group are stated at cost less any
provision for obsolescence.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised
at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less allowance for
impairment of doubtful debts (see note 1(h]], except
where the receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment terms or
the effect of discounting would be immaterial. In such
cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance
for impairment of doubtful debts.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at
fair value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent
to initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are
stated at amortised cost with any difference between
the amount initially recognised and redemption value
being recognised in profit or loss over the period of the
borrowings, together with any interest and fees payable,
using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

BIRS R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BA#SITSI7R

1

SAEAEERIN)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(m) Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Short-term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans and the cost of non-monetary benefits are
accrued in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect would be
material, these amounts are stated at their present
values.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee cost
with a corresponding increase in a share-based
compensation reserve within equity. The fair value
Is measured at grant date after taking into account
the terms and conditions upon which the options
were granted. Where the employees have to meet
vesting conditions before becoming unconditionally
entitled to the options, the total estimated fair value
of the share options is spread over the vesting
period, taking into account the probability that the
options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any
resulting adjustment to the cumulative fair value
recognised in prior years is charged/credited to the
profit or loss for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify for recognition
as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment to
the share-based compensation reserve. On vesting
date, the amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of options
that vest (with a corresponding adjustment to
the share-based compensation reserve) except
where forfeiture is only due to not achieving
vesting conditions that relate to the market price
of the Company’s shares. The equity amount is
recognised in the share-based compensation
reserve until either the option is exercised (when
it is transferred to the share premium account] or
the option expires (when it is released directly to
accumulated losses).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
g e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (IAFTTHIR + BEEAEERSIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 EREHBEE)
(n) Income tax (n) FfEH

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the relevant
amounts of tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable
income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date, and any
adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their
tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused
tax losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax
liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the
reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation
authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse either in the same period as the expected
reversal of the deductible temporary difference or in
periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred
tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses
and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and
the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
Bup e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BAFTTHIR + BEERERRSN)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(n) Income tax (continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax
assets and liabilities are those temporary differences
arising from the initial recognition of assets or liabilities
that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business combination)
and temporary differences relating to investments in
subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable
differences, the Group controls the timing of the reversal
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible
differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in
the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured
based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed
at each balance sheet date and is reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow the related tax benefit to be
utilised. Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that
it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on undistributed profits
of investments in subsidiaries, except where the Group
is able to control the reversal of temporary differences
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (JAZSLHIR

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
(n) Income tax (continued)

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities, if the Company or the
Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the
Company or the Group intends either to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities,
if they relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected
to be settled or recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle the current tax
liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.

(o) Other payables

Other payables [including amounts due to related
parties) are initially recognised at fair value and are
subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the effect
of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
Bup e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BAFTTHIR + BEERERRSN)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(P)

(@)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the Group or the
Company has a legal or constructive obligation arising
as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided it is
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the revenue and costs, if applicable, can be
measured reliably, revenue is recognised in profit or
loss as follows:

(] Rental income receivable under operating leases
is recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments
over the periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits to be derived from the use
of the leased asset. Lease incentives granted are
recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of
the aggregate net lease payments receivable.

(i) Portincome is recognised upon performance of the
services.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
g e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (IAFTTHIR + BEEAEERSIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued) 1 EREHBEE)
(a) Revenue recognition (continued) () WAREE)

(i) Interest income is recognised as it accrues using
the effective interest method.

(iv] Government grants are recognised in the balance
sheet initially when there is reasonable assurance
that they will be received and that the Group will
comply with the conditions attaching to them.
Grants that compensate the Group for expenses
incurred are recognised as income in profit or
loss on a systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred. Grants that
compensate the Group for the cost of an asset are
deducted from the carrying amount of the asset
and consequently are effectively recognised in
profit or loss over the useful life of the asset by way
of reduced depreciation expense.

(r) Translation of foreign currencies

The functional currencies of the Company and its
subsidiaries in the PRC are Hong Kong dollars and
Renminbi Yuan respectively. The Group adopted Hong
Kong dollars as its presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date.
Exchange gains or losses are recognised in profit or
loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair
value are translated using the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates the fair value was measured.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
Bup e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BAFTTHIR + BEERERRSN)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(r)

(s)

Translation of foreign currencies (continued)

The results of operations with functional currency
other than Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Balance sheet items are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the closing exchange rates at the balance
sheet date. The resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated separately in equity in the translation
reserve.

On disposal of an operation with functional currency
other than Hong Kong dollars, the cumulative amount
of the exchange differences relating to that operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit
or loss on disposal is recognised.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of an asset
which necessarily takes a substantial period of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as
part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of the cost
of a qualifying asset commences when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are being
incurred and activities that are necessary to prepare the
asset for its intended use. Capitalisation of borrowing
costs is suspended or ceases when substantially all the
activities necessary to prepare the qualifying asset for
its intended use are complete.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

B RS R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (IAFTTHIR + BEEAEERSIN)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(t) Related parties
A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the Group if that person:

(a)

(b)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

isamember of the key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group [which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (al(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of
a parent of the entity).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
Bup e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BAFTTHIR + BEERERRSN)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(t) Related parties (continued)
Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity.

(u) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment
item reported in the financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the
Group’'s most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and assessing the
performance of, the Group's various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type or
class of customers, the methods used to distribute the
products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if they share
a majority of these criteria.

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The critical accounting judgements in applying the Group’s
accounting policies and key sources of estimation uncertainty
are as follows:

(a) Impairments

The Group reviews the carrying amounts of assets at
each balance sheet date to determine whether there
is objective evidence of impairment. When indication
of impairment is identified, management prepares
discounted future cash flow to assess the differences
between the carrying amount and value in use and
provides for impairment loss. Any change in the
assumptions adopted in the cash flow forecasts would
increase or decrease in the provision of impairment loss
and affect the Group’s financial position.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

B RS R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (IAFTTHIR + BEEAEERSIN)

ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(continued)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Impairments (continued)

Provision for impairment of trade and other receivables
is assessed and provided based on the management’s
regular review of ageing analysis and evaluation of
collectibility. A considerable level of judgement is
exercised by the directors when assessing the credit
worthiness and past collection history of each individual
customer. Any increase or decrease in the provision
would affect the Group's profit or loss in future years.

Depreciation

Fixed assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over the estimated useful lives of the assets. The Group
reviews the estimated useful lives of the assets regularly
inorder to determine the amount of depreciation
expense to be recorded during the reporting period. The
depreciation expense for future periods is adjusted if
there are significant changes from previous estimation.

Lease classification

Leases are classified as operating leases if the duration
of the arrangement are for less than a major part of
the facilities” useful lives and the present value of the
minimum payments under the arrangement does not
amount to at least substantially all of the fair value of
the facilities. The conclusion on classification of leases
may be affected if there are significant changes in
assumptions adopted in the estimates of the facilities’
useful lives and the present value of the minimum
payments. The Group uses all readily available
information in estimating the useful lives and present
value of minimum payments.

Provision for taxation

Judgment is required in determining the provision
for income taxes. There are transactions during the
ordinary course of business for which calculations of the
ultimate tax provision is uncertain. The final outcomes
are subject to uncertainties and resulting liabilities may
exceed provisions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
Bup e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BAFTTHIR + BEERERRSN)

3

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3
(a) Turnover
The principal activities of the Group are provision of
terminal, transshipment, warehousing and storage
facilities services for oil and petrochemical products.

Turnover represents port income and storage,
warehousing and transshipment income. The amount of
each significant category recognised in turnover during
the year is as follows:

ERBER D BRE
(a) E%H

AEEZ EBXBREHAHM
ACEMEE - 8B - RELET
7 R ARS

LEEBREAEORANTE  BRE
MEHUA - FRNERBEANRE
RZEEXERSEWNT

2013 2012
—2-=f —T=F
$°000 $°000
T T

Storage, warehousing and P17 - BEREHKA
transshipment income 214,812 199,287
Port income ARl YN 5,609 4,732
220,421 204,019

In 2013, the Group has no customer (2012: one
customer] with whom transactions have exceeded 10%
of the Group’s revenues. In 2012, revenue from provision
of storage and transshipment services to this customer,
including revenues from entities which are known to the
Group to be under common control with this customer,
amounted to approximately $22 million. Details of
concentrations of credit risk arising from the Group's
major customers are set out in note 23(a).

RZZE—=%F  r~EEUEEP
ZEZF —RRPHELRE
BT R GEBARNERRA L
0% c RZE——F » [MZEE
PIRHATF RE R RS2 4K
A BEAEBENXZEEP
HEES 2 BEAE WAL
220087 - AAKEEBETERF
EEEERBER ZFHE &R
Bi3E23(a) °
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (JAZSLHIR

3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(b) Segment reporting
The Group manages its businesses by entities, which

are organised by geography. In a manner consistent

with the way in which information is reported internally

to the Group’s most senior executive management for

the purposes of resource allocation and performance

assessment, the Group has identified the following two

reportable segments. No operating segments have been

aggregated to form the following reportable segments.

(i)

Xiao Hu Island Terminal ("XHIT"): this segment
represents the Group's provision of terminal,
transshipment, warehousing and storage activities
carried out in Panyu, the PRC.

Dongzhou International Terminal ['DZIT"): this
segment represents the Group's provision of
terminal, transshipment and storage activities
carried out in Dongguan, the PRC.

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the Group's senior executive
management monitors the results, assets and
liabilities attributable to each reportable segment
on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible
assets and current assets with the exception of
investments in subsidiaries and other corporate
assets. Segment liabilities include other payables
and accruals attributable to the individual segments
and bank borrowings managed directly by the
segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the
reportable segments with reference to revenue
generated by those segments and the expenses
incurred by those segments or which otherwise
arise from the depreciation or amortisation of
assets attributable to those segments.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT

BIRS R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TSII/R

3

SAEAEERIN)

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 3 EBEERIBHREE)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) DEHRE(E)

() Segment results, assets and liabilities [continued) (i) 2HpEE -BEEREREE)
The measure used for reporting segment profit/ BE ¥R > # s 7 (&HE) A
(loss) is “profit/(loss) before taxation”, i.e. “adjusted KAZAERIBRIANG
earnings/(losses) before taxes”. To arrive at “profit/ F(&E) ] BT REH
(loss) before taxation”, the Group's earnings/ BRI ZEAERR (5
(losses) are further adjusted for items not B RERIBRBANR
specifically attributed to individual segments, such MOER)] AEEZR
as head office or corporate administration costs. BB RTEFTR

BIERISE 2 EE (N4
R BATEAA) EH A
=’ o
In addition to receiving segment information i Eqﬁ?ﬂ@ﬁﬁﬁfﬁiﬂ/
concerning profit/(loss) before taxation, (ETE)Z"*BQHM\ '
management is provided with segment information ﬁ]‘]’%khﬁﬁ%ﬂ&ﬁ
concerning revenue, interest income and finance FEWARTERAZ D
costs. &R -
Information regarding the Group's reportable HEz-_Z2—=K=%
segments provided to the Group’s most senior ——F+ZA=+—RH1k
executive management for the purposes of FE - FHREETAEE
resource allocation and assessment of segment BEEETHREBEABUS
performance for the years ended 31 December B &R R At 9 B R IR 2
2013 and 2012 is set out below. REEFAHRESHERH
FIR T -
XHIT DzIT Total
PRALE RMALE st
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
-z “%T-—% “§-=f “F-—% “B-=fF “FT-—F
$'000 $000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
T T Tr T T Tr
Reportable segment AREDHRA
revenue 104,355 100,694 116,066 103,325 220,421 204,019
Reportable segment loss AT #R&E 758
before taxation FRBtAl R R (5,075) (789)  (79,087)  (89,766)  [(84,162)  (90,555)
Interest income MBHA 580 559 89 174 669 733
Finance costs BB 14,580 13363 66,185 6655 80,765 79919
Reportable segment assets A& D EEE 1,493,290 1524785 1,315,249 1,358,132 2,808,539 2882917
Reportable segment aENHaRE
liabilities 1,395,808 1412931 1,039,253 1012611 2,435,061 2425542
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (IAFTTHIR + BEEAEERSIN)

ERRRERAHE
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3 TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 3 EEERITEHmEE)
(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) DEHRE(E)
(ii) Reconciliations of reportable segment revenues, (i) THREDBYRA - B
profit or loss, assets and liabilities EEREBEZHE
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——-F
$°000 $°000
Fx Tt
Revenue N
Reportable segment revenue AR SR A 220,421 204,019
Consolidated turnover RE 220,421 204,019
Loss BB
Reportable segment loss before AHREDH
taxation B A EIE (84,162) (90,555)
Unallocated other net income FoH Eﬁﬁ@”& 307 142
Unallocated head office and AP ECEER
corporate expenses NI iﬁ (31,589) (34,195)
Consolidated loss before taxation — #R& KT AIEE (115,444) (124,608)
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AISREDHEE 2,808,539 2,882,917
Elimination of inter-segment paskichoR=iliawd
receivables FEW FRTE (1,017,897) (988,019)
1,790,642 1,894,898
Unallocated head office and AP EL4EER
corporate assets Téfé 40,906 12,481
Consolidated total assets IREBEE 1,831,548 1,907,379
Liabilities aE
Reportable segment liabilities AIRESEEE 2,435,061 2,425,542
Elimination of inter-segment aski k=T o
payables EAREE] (1,017,897) (988,019)
1,417,164 1,437,523
Unallocated head office and RoBLBE &
corporate liabilities NRIAG 94,667 49,343
Consolidated total liabilities N = 1,511,831 1,486,866




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
Bup e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BA#SITSI7R

3

SAEAEERIN)

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 3

(b) Segment reporting (continued)
(iii) Geographic information

The following table sets out information about the

geographical location of (i] the Group's revenue

from external customers and (i) the Group’s fixed

assets, intangible assets, non-current prepayments

("specified non-current assets”). The geographical

location of customers is based on the location at

which the services were provided. The geographical

location of the specified non-current assets is

based on the physical location of the asset.

BRBERDBE®RE(E)
(b) DEHE(E)

(iii)

i & & R
TREHNEBHEANE ()
REBRIINBEEAEZ
WARAEERZ BT
BE- - EREE R
FERNFIB([IEEIHMEE
EDFEWEZ2ER - &
FRTEb R AR ERS 2
AWK - IBEIERD
BEMEHMENEECZE
BREFAE M Bh AR KR o

Revenues from Specified
external customers non-current assets
HREERBZBA EEFRBEE
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —E--F —E-=F —E-CF
$'000 $000 $000 $°000
T T Tr T
Hong Kong Py - - 4,318 2,745
PRC [excluding Hong Kong) #EI(T &) 220,421 204,019 1,682,955 1,751,031
220,621 204,019 1,687,273 1,753,776
OTHER NET (LOSS)/INCOME 4 Hp(&8) W FHE
2013 2012
—E—=fF —ET——F
$°000 $'000
T Tt
Interest income FBEUWA 672 755
Government grants BT ED 1,033 1,035
Losses on disposal of property, HEWE - RE REENEE
plant and equipment (1,576) (131)
Net foreign exchange loss bE X B EFRE (1,386) (201)
Others Hitb 992 1,570
(265) 3,028
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LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT
g e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (IAFTTHIR + BEEAEERSIN)

5 KRHAEE

Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging: BrEATE B T IR T X IRRE
o
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——-F
$°000 $°000
Fx Tt
(a) Finance costs (a) BAFERAS
Interest on bank loans IRITEFRF B 80,855 80,071
(b) Staff costs* (b) BI A
Contributions to defined M) E B FURIRETEIE L
contribution retirement plans 2R 2,606 2,347
Salaries, wages and other benefits HN - TE&E REMEF 54,891 51,313
57,497 53,660
(c) Otheritems (c) HfEE
Amortisation 5
- land lease premium — e 7,646 7,560
- intangible assets —EBVEE 203 203
Depreciation e 123,737 119,625
Auditor’s remuneration A GTIE T
- audit services — AR 1,358 1,320
- review services — = BR®E 380 380
Operating lease charges MENKELHEER*
on properties* 7,796 7,968
*  Staff costs include $1,800,000 (2012: $1,800,000) relating * BIXKABEYMENKEHEE

to operating lease charges on properties, which amount
is also included in the respective total amount disclosed

separately above.

ERRRERAHE

£ 5 1,800,000( —F—— 4 :
1,800,0007T) * & X EIRET AR
FiERIFEENSBBEEF -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (LA TSII/R

6 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED INCOME 6

STATEMENT

(a) Income tax in the consolidated income statement

represents:

SAEAEERIN)

(a)

mERBERPZAER

REBEBERPZAEHIE

2013 2012
—E—=F —EF——F
$’000 $°000
Fx T
Deferred tax — origination and reversal IEIEF{IE — ZHFIEZR ~
of temporary differences (note 18(b)) &4 K [0148 (£ 18(b)) (584) (573)

Notes:

(i) No Hong Kong Profits Tax was provided for the year ended
31 December 2013 as the Group sustained a loss for Hong
Kong Profits Tax purposes for the year (2012: Nil).

(i) No PRC Enterprise Income Tax was provided for the year
ended 31 December 2013 as the Group sustained a loss
for PRC Enterprise Income Tax purposes for the year

(2012: Nill.

The applicable tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries for the
year ended 31 December 2013 was 25% (2012: 25%).

(b)

Reconciliation between tax credit and accounting

(ii)

HE_ZT—=F+=-A=+—
BIEFE  BEEFEHM
T BERAEERTFRELEE
B B EREAANEHE
REBH( TS ——F &) -

Eﬁiﬁ ﬁ¢aﬁ¥%ﬁﬁ
ME  ARRNEBRFRNESE
518 - Bt EmR R BT
B REBE(ZE—=F:
) o

HE-_ZT—=F+=-A=+—
AIEFE  FEfEARZE
AREAED% (T — —4F:
25%) ©

(b) RERABRFHEZHBAERRS

loss at applicable tax rates: sTEEZEERMNT ¢

2013 2012

—E—=fF —E——F

$°000 $'000

Tt Tt

Loss before taxation M F AT E 18 (115,444) (124,608)
Notional tax on loss before tax, LEAREBRHRESREE
calculated at the rates applicable in B 2 TR MR TLAT

the tax jurisdictions concerned BB E 2 AR HIE (26,333) (28,400)

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses  NA[KINS H 2 T IS L& 1,287 2,563

Tax effect of non-taxable income JERTUMA Z B & (50) (29)
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RERZ AT A IEREE

recognised IR E 24,480 25,230

Others Hi 32 63

Actual tax credit ERHIERR (584) (573)
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B RS RAR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (IAFTTHIR + BEEAEERSIN)

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 7
Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:

EEME
EEFEREBEFBRTENE 16115
WEMT

2013 —E—=F
Salaries,
allowances  Retirement
Directors’ and benefits scheme
fee inkind contributions Total
B 2R BIRGHE
EEHe B = a
$'000 $000 $'000 $'000
Tr Tr Tr Tr
Executive directors BITES
David An Bz - 4,790 60 4,850
Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas HEH - 975 15 990
Liu Zhijun 2EE - 975 60 1,035
Zhang Lei K& - 1,209 15 1,224
Independent non-executive BIEHTES
directors
Li Wai Keung FRE® 120 - - 120
Chan Chun Wai, Tony BRIR(E 120 - - 120
Cheung Siu Yuen, Rose [note (i) Z/\gp (F5E() 70 - - 70
Liu Jian (note (ii)) 2 (BI=EG) 50 = = 50
360 7,949 150 8,459
Notes: 5T -

(i} Miss Cheung Siu Yuen, Rose was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company with effect from 31 May

2013.

(ii)

Mr. Liu Jian resigned as an independent non-executive director

of the Company with effect from 31 May 2013.

ERRRERAHE
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BA#SITSI7R

7 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

2012

SAEAEERIN)

EsMe#)

—E——F

Salaries,
allowances Retirement

Directors”  and benefits scheme
fee inkind  contributions Total
B RRL R RRETE
ik Y e Ak
$°000 $°000 $'000 $°000
T T T F
Executive directors HITES
David An A - 4,882 60 4,942
Fung Chi Kwan, Nicholas BE - 975 14 989
Liu Zhijun 2EE - 975 60 1,035
Zhang Lei RE - 1,209 14 1,223
Independent non-executive BYFHTEE
directors
Li Wai Keung Xt 120 - - 120
Chan Chun Wai, Tony BRIRIE 120 - - 120
Liu Jian £z 120 - - 120
360 8,041 148 8,549

During the years ended 31 December 2012 and 2013, no
amount was paid or payable by the Company to the directors

or any of the five highest paid individuals set out in note 8

below as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as

compensation for loss of office. There was no arrangement
under which a director waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS RAR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (IAFTTHIR + BEEAEERSIN)

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS
Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the
Group, four (2012: four) are directors of the Company whose
emoluments are disclosed in note 7. The emoluments in
respect of the remaining individual are as follow:

BEeHMAL
REAEERATRFTMALTHR - Ed
ME(ZE——F : IR) AT ABER
AIEE  HMSRWE7HEE - BT
—BATHMEmT

2013 2012
—B—=F —E——F
$'000 $'000
Ft Tt
Salaries and other benefits M R H AR A 773 724
Contributions to defined contribution TE R BURIRGT B 2 3R
retirement plans 26 28
799 752
The emolument of the remaining individual with the highest ZEmEF AT ZMEN FATE
emoluments is within the following band: :
Number of individuals
A
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——4F
Nil - $1,000,000 Z£—1,000,0007T 1 1
LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF 9 ZAATAKRRENLER
THE COMPANY
The consolidated loss attributable to equity shareholders of RRARMRIE(L 2 7 A BB B iEEE
the Company includes a loss of $3,950,000 (2012: $4,667,000) 3,950,0007C (= F — =4 : 4,667,000
which has been dealt with in the financial statements of the 7)) - BEERAR B EHRAR AR o
Company.
LOSS PER SHARE 10 BRER
Basic and diluted loss per share BREARBHEER
The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share is based BREAREEBEREIREFALRA
on the loss attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of Bl &M AR R PG /E518 108,061,000
the Company of $108,061,000 (2012: $116,713,000] and the TL(ZE—=4F : 116,713,00070) & E
weighted average of 3,732,638,000 ordinary shares (2012: AT E AN #E 715 843,732,638,000
3,732,638,000 ordinary shares) in issue during the year. A @k ( —Z——4F : 3,732,638,000
Mg AR ) E -
The diluted loss per share is the same as the basic loss per HREBEE_T—_FR_ZB—=F
share as there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares TZA=T—BIEFERALEERA
in existence during the years ended 31 December 2012 and HEERZBEEBR  WERk#E
2013. BIRESRERERER -
ERRRARAR 77 “E-=FFR
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BAFTTHIR + BEERERRSN)

FIXED ASSETS 11 EBEEE
(a) The Group (a) ~5HE
Interests
inland held
for own use
Dock and under
storage Office Motor Leasehold operating Total fixed
Buildings facilities equipment vehicles  improvements Sub-total leases assets
RELE
BER REREER BEEE
53 hERE  BOZRE e RENERE Nt 2R 1)
$/000 $'000 $000 $1000 $000 $1000 $000 $1000
i T i i i i T i
(note FfzE(b])
Cost: A
At 1 January 2013 R=E-=F-F-H 53,593 1,896,936 6,721 20,635 149 1,978,040 316,377 2,296,617
Exchange adjustments EiAE 1,677 59,240 190 595 - 61,702 9,899 71,601
Additions AE - 819 693 - 1,899 341 - 341
Disposals e - (10,711) (453) = (156) (11,320 - (11,3200
At 31 December 2013 RZE-ZF
T-A=1-H 55,270 1,946,284 7,157 2,230 1,892 2,031,833 326,276 2,358,109
Accumulated depreciation ~ REHTEREH
and amortisation:
At 1 January 2013 R=E-=F-F-R 9,949 488,292 3,737 12,740 149 514,867 36,273 551,140
Exchange adjustments 3 339 17,049 104 399 - 17,891 1,258 19,149
Charge for the year EEIE 1,744 118,589 818 2560 2% 123,737 7,646 131,383
Written back on disposals R EEFEE - (8,249) (462) - (156) (8,847) - (8,847)
At 31 December 2013 wZE-Z%
T-A=1-H 12,032 615,681 427 15,699 19 647,648 45177 692,825
Net book value: RERE:
At31 Decernber 2013 RZE-=F
tZA=1-R 43,238 1,330,603 2,940 5,531 1,873 1,384,185 281,09 1,665,284

HANS ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (A TLHIR © BHEFAERIN)

11 FIXED ASSETS (continued) 11 EEEEGE)
(a) The Group (continued) (a) &xEE(E)
Interests
inland held
for own use
Dock and under
storage Office Motor ~ Leasehold Constructionin ~ operating ~ Total fixed
Buildings facilities  equipment vehicles  improvements Sub-total progress leases assets
RigaE
BER HEREER EFE
g7 BhdE  BRERE g EEMERE et fRIE  sbitEs o
$000 000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
T T T R T T T R T
(note (b))
Cost: A
At 1 January 2012 R-E--F
-A-H 53,600 1,888,093 5839 20013 149 196769 - 316,614 2,284,108
Exchange adjustments EHAE 7 (198) 3 - - (202 - 37 (2%9)
Additions B 5412 945 1,569 - 7922 3429 - 11,501
Disposals e - (60) (943) (1003 - (1003
Transfers g 3429 - - - 3429 (3,429 -
At31 December 2012 RoE--F
TZA=+-R 53593 189,936 872 20,63 149 1978,040 - 316317 20944617
Accumulated depreciation ~ EiTTEREH
and amortisation:
At 1 January 2012 RZE-ZF
—-A-H 8,232 313,298 3028 11,031 149 39,738 - 28,690 426,428
Exchange adjustments ERR 5 U7 2 4 - 38 - B 31
Charge for the year ERAE 1712 114,847 761 2505 - 119,625 - 7,560 127,185
Written back on disposals ~ IAHERER - - (54) (800) - (854) - (854)
At31 December 2012 RZE-ZfF
t-A=t-H 9,949 488,292 3,737 12760 149 014,867 - 36,213 951,140
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2012 i 3
+-A=1-H 43,044 1,408,644 2990 789 - 1463173 - 280,104 1763217
The Group was granted the rights to use the land by the (b) AEEEPEEFEERT T

(b)

PRC authorities with lease terms of 50 years. The net

book value as at 31 December 2013 includes an amount
of $7,823,000 (2012: $7,587,000) which is disclosed as
interest in land held for own use under operating leases

under current assets.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BAFTTHIR + BEERERRSN)

11 FIXED ASSETS (continued)
(c) The analysis of net book value of properties is as follow:

11 BEE&EEE)
(c) DEREFEZIOIMT

The Group
rEE
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
$°000 $'000
T Tt
In PRC: (LR
Medium-term leases AR HAFR 49 324,337 323,748
Representing: B8 :
Buildings gF 43,238 43,644
Interest in land held for own use BEBESEHERIEERZ
under operating leases TibiEES 281,099 280,104
324,337 323,748
12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 12 BREE
The Group
AEH
Club membership
b=¢3
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
$°000 $'000
T Tt
Cost: AN :
At 1 January n—A—H 3,813 3,813
Exchange adjustments M 5,8 B 16 -
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 3,829 3813
Accumulated amortisation: G ol
At 1 January n—A—H 1,207 1,004
Exchange adjustments P A 6 -
Charge for the year FENE 203 203
At 31 December R+—_A=+—H . Lme 1207
Net book value: BREEE -
At 31 December R+—A=+—H 2,413 2,606

The amortisation charge for the year is included in
“administrative expenses” in the consolidated income
statement.
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13 INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 13 RHEARZER
The Company
b NN
2013 2012
—E—=fF —E——4F
$'000 $°000
T T
Unlisted shares/capital contributions, I ETRD,ERERE

at cost R 1,051,500 1,051,500
Less: impairment loss o ORERTE (496,245) (496,245)
555,255 555,255
Amount due from a subsidiary BN — R B R B 5RIE 18,427 21,599
573,682 576,854

The amount due from a subsidiary is unsecured, interest free
and is not expected to be recovered within twelve months
from the balance sheet date.

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of
the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary shares unless
otherwise indicated.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BAFTTHIR + BEERERRSN)

13

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Details of the Company’'s principal subsidiaries at 31
December 2013 are as follows:

13

R B AR 2 S (&)
AR —_ZE—=F+_HA=+—H
ZEBHB AR ZHBIT

Attributable
Place of Particulars of equity interest
Place of incorporation/ issued and IR E
Name of subsidiary operation establishment paid up capital Directly  Indirectly Principal activities
Bl ERTRCAR
WEAREM BEwE BRI 2 b % RAFE E# B IEXH
Guangdong Petro-Chemicals Hong Kong Hong Kong 20,000,000 shares of - 100%  Provision of
Company Limited &% B $1 each administrative services
ERREMIBRAR 20,000,000 & RAETHR
HET
Oriental Point International Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 1,000,000 shares of - 100%  Inactive
REERERAR BB B $1 each LEXH
1,000,000f%
BRAEETT
Timeslink Development Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong 10,000 shares of 100% - Provision of
BB RARAR B A $1 each administrative services
10,0008 REITHRS
BREEIT
Union Petro - Chemicals Hong Kong British Virgin 100 shares of 100% - Investment holding
(BVI) Company Limited E% Islands US$1 each RAER
ERMERRIERAF e 1008
BREEIET
Guangdong (Panyu) Petrochemical PRC PRC RMB220,000,000 - 92%  Provision of terminal,
Storage & Transportation Ltd. i i AR 8220,000,0007T storage, warehousing
("GD [Panyul’) and transshipment
ER(ER) AR THEREARAT services
(re&(E8))) REEE  BF BER
L
BEMFRRRCIREEARAR PRC PRC RMBA,820,800 - 92%  Investment holding
(Thigaft)) hE hE AR 4,820,800 REER
Guangzhou Zhongshui Petrochemical
Development Limited
REmENERALRRERAR PRC PRC RMB374,110,000 - 92%  Provision of terminal,
(TMERR ) HE HE AR¥E374,110,0007 storage and

Dongguan Dongzhou International
Petrochemical Storage Limited

Note:

GD (Panyu) is a sino-foreign equity joint venture company and

FiRA(E and BMBIER are limited liability companies. The
official names of AL and EINEIEE are in Chinese and
the English translations are for reference only.

HANS ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (IAFTTHIR + BEEAEERSIN)

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 13
The following table lists out the information relating to GD
(Panyu), the only subsidiary of the Group which has material
non-controlling interest ("NCI”). The summarised financial

information presented below represents the amounts before

any inter-company elimination.

REE AT 2w ()

TR AKEME—FHEERER
fan ([ FEEf s ) B AR —&
B(ER)NER - TXME5 28
BRI ER AR HAZ 28 -

2013 2012
—E—=F —EF——F
$'000 $-000
=P Tt
NCI percentage FEFERR AR L D1 8% 8%
Non-current assets IEMBEE 1,684,673 1,752,619
Current assets MENEE 173,666 196,600
Current liabilities mEaE (74,561) (110,577
Non-current liabilities FRBEE (1,353,260) (1,337,445)
Net assets BERE 430,518 501,197
Carrying amount of NCI IR S AR E (A 34,441 40,096
Revenue W25 218,917 202,384
Loss for the year FNEE (84,992) (91,525)
Total comprehensive income 2 EN B (86,362) (91,840
Loss allocated to NCI DB T IS 2 B1E (6,799) (7,322)
Net cash generated from operating EEEBMEREFE
activities 107,417 84,683
Net cash used in investing activities KEEBMARSFE (11,745) (32,442)
Net cash used in financing activities BEREFAR S FE (141,064) (30,310

ERRRERAHE
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BAFTTHIR + BEERERRSN)

14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 14 BEZREMEVRFIE
The Group The Company
REH b N
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—=F T —E-=F —ZT—=
$'000 $'000 $°000 $'000
Frx Tt T FT
Trade debtors and B RWERT N
bills receivable et 153,627 139,939 - -
Less: Allowance for doubtful 5 : RIZBREE
debts [note 14[b)) (B3E14(b)) (122,122) (118,417) - -
31,505 21,522 = -
Prepayments and other FARTRIE R E A
receivables FEU R E 11,912 14,259 356 356
Amount due from a subsidiary ~ ER—RKTB R FIZE - - 3,949 4,723
43,617 35,781 4,305 5,079

The amount of the Group's and the Company’s prepayments
and other receivables expected to be recovered or recognised
as expense after more than one yearis $920,000 (2012:
$345,000) and $Nil (2012: $Nil) respectively. Apart from these,
the prepayments and other receivables are expected to be
recovered or recognised as expense within one year.

(a) Ageing analysis
As at balance sheet date, the ageing analysis of trade
debtors and bills receivable based on the invoice date
and net of allowance for doubtful debts is as follows:

AEE R AR E) TR — F &I E sk
WRAEB A2 TENKIA R E M FE U
B RIA920,000T( & ——4F -
345,000L) REL(ZE—=F: &
TC) ° KRtk Z o - FEAST FRIE R E A fE

W IETE A — F A B sk R A
BRA -
(a) BRERDHT

RESER - REEXZAHREH
B RIZRRBHR 2 B 5 R UGRIE K
FEWSEIR 2 SR AT T

2013 2012

—E—=f -4

Within 1 month —EAR 23,787 17,925
Over 1 month but within 2 months ~ —f@AA A HER@EA A 2,213 2,038
Over 2 months but within 3 months A A LA LB ={EAR 5,505 1,559
31,505 21,522

Subject to negotiation, credit is generally only available
to major customers with well-established trading
records. The Group allows an average credit period of
30 days to its trade customers. Further details on the
Company's credit policy are set out in note 23(a).

B BHKERME - BRI
ERTARURFGEHIEEER
F - AEEGETESEPFH30
RZGHRE - BAARREER
RZE— S FHBRNKI23(a)

HANS ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED 84 ANNUAL REPORT 2013



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS RAR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (IAFTTHIR + BEEAEERSIN)

14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
(b) Impairment of trade debtors and bills receivable

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors and bills
receivable are recorded using an allowance account
unless the Group is satisfied that recovery of the amount
is remote, in which case the impairment loss is written
off against trade debtors and bills receivable directly (see
note 1(h](i)).

A PRC subsidiary of the Company and SINOPEC
Guangdong Oil Products Company (the “Lessee”)
entered into an oil storage tanks lease agreement (the
“Lease Agreement”) in 2004. During the year ended 31
December 2011, a request was made by the Lessee for
its unilateral termination of the Lease Agreement since
1 July 2011 because of changes in the Lessee’s business
operating conditions.

In this connection, the Group has ceased to recognise
revenue from the Lease Agreement since 1 July 2011.
Further, there is accrued rental income receivable
arising from initial rent free period of the Lease
Agreement (included within trade receivables) of
RMB$90,795,000 (equivalent to $115,486,000). As it is
uncertain that the Lease Agreement will continue to be
executed for the remaining lease term, full impairment
loss was recognised on the accrued rental income
receivable during the year ended 31 December 2011.
Apart from the accrued rental income receivable, the
Group did not have other outstanding receivables due
from the Lessee at 31 December 2012 and 2013.
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E
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BAFTTHIR + BEERERRSN)

14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) 14 BERHMEREE)
(b) Impairment of trade debtors and bills receivable (b) ESEWRAREVZE ZRE
(continued) (&)
The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts FARZREH 2 ZEHT -
during the year is as follows:
The Group
REH
2013 2012
—2-=f —T=F
$°000 $'000
T Tt
At 1 January n—H—H 118,417 118,431
Exchange adjustment ME 5 B 3,705 (14)
At 31 December R+—A=+—H 122,122 118,417

At 31 December 2013, the Group’s trade debtors and
bills receivable of $122,122,000 (2012: $118,417,000)
were individually determined to be impaired, of which
$6,636,000 (2012: $6,435,000) related to customers that
were in financial difficulties and management assessed
that the receivables were not expected to be recovered.
In addition, specific allowance for doubtful debts of
$115,486,000 (2012: $111,982,000) was recognised as at
31 December 2013 in respect of accrued rental income
receivable in relation to the Lease Agreement, which the
Lessee requested to terminate since 1 July 2011.

On 11 June 2012, the Group has applied for an
arbitration to the Guangzhou Arbitration Commission
(the "Arbitration Commission”) in accordance with the
specific terms and conditions of the Lease Agreement
in respect of the unilateral termination of the Lease
Agrement by the Leasee. By 31 December 2013, the
Arbitration Commission did not make any conclusion.
However, subsequent to the end of the reporting period,
the Company received an arbitration award from the
Arbitration Commission. Further details have been set
out in note 28.
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R-E—=%F+—-A=+—8"
AEBERHTEREZESE
AR R B SR 15 2122,122,000
7T (ZZF— — 4 : 118,417,000
TT) + Hrh6,636,0000(ZE——=
F 1 6,435,0007T) 2 FEUGRIR B
EYBR#E s EFEH  BEE
TSR RIBEIE T
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=t+—HpAERREENTER
fEU AR € IR AR E RIZRE
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RS -
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (IAFTTHIR + BEEAEERSIN)

14 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
(c) Trade debtors and bills receivable that are not

impaired

The ageing analysis of trade debtors and bills receivable
that are neither individually nor collectively considered
to be impaired are as follows:

14 BEREMEWREE)
(c) REEZEKEZRARERR

%
W AR R AR ERE S B 5
R SR 21 R BB I SR BRI
T

The Group
REE

2013 2012
—E—=F —T——4F
$'000 $'000
SEm T
Neither past due nor impaired 3 38 HA kORI E 23,787 17,925
Less than 1 month past due BEDRNE A 2,213 2,038
1 to 3 months past due BENZ3(EA 5,505 1,559
___________ L R L
31,505 21,522

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there was
no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance
is necessary in respect of these balances as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and these
balances are considered fully recoverable. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BAFTTHIR + BEERERRSN)

15 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 15 RERREFEER
(a) Cash and cash equivalents comprise: (a) REeRRLEEERAERE:
The Group The Company
rEE b NN
2013 2012 2013 2012
—B-=F 2 =ZB-=F —E—=fF
$'000 $°000 $000 $'000
Tr T Tr T
Time deposits T HFR - 30,834 - -
Other cash and cash HipRe kRe
equivalents FEEH 56,993 42,737 28 32
56,993 73,571 28 32
(b) Reconciliation of loss before taxation to cash (b) BRFBAIBEELSEEKFMERS
generated from operations: ZEER
2013 2012
—E-—=F —E—F
Note $’000 $°000
BfaE Tt T
Loss before taxation PR AT R (115,444) (124,608)
Adjustments for: MATBIAEL TR -
Interest income T A 4 (672) (755)
Finance costs B SR AR 5(a) 80,855 80,071
Depreciation ree 5(c) 123,737 119,625
Amortisation of land lease TR E B E
premium 5(c) 7,646 7,560
Amortisation of intangible B A EHH
assets 5(c) 203 203
Losses on disposal of property, HEWE « BEK&
plant and equipment B b 4 1,576 131
Exchange differences PR =% 1,605 121
Changes in working capital: LEEe 2 EE
Decrease/lincrease) in SEFERIE L, (1E)
consumable parts 1,742 (822)
Increase in trade and B 5 R EAFE
other receivables SRIAIE N (5,542) (2,755)
Decrease in other payables H A e RIE &
and accruals FHEBREL (966) (3,390)
Cash generated from operations #& &£ E 94,740 75,381
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (IAFTTHIR + BEEAEERSIN)

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 16 HittERAREBERREA
The Group The Company
rEE KAF
2013 2012 2013 2012
—E-=F —T——-F —EB-=F 2
$’000 $'000 $'000 $000
T FIT Fr FIT
Other payables and accruals ~ HbE{FIBRFHEE A 53,372 54,337 2,102 2,102
Deferred revenue ELEWA 2,093 483 - -
Amount due to RERE T e
non-controlling interests - 12,334 - -
55,465 67,154 2,102 2,102

At 31 December 2013 and 2012, all of the other payables and
accruals are expected to be settled within one year.

NZEBE-—=FER_F——F+_f
=+—H  FIEEMENRIENRETE
ERBHN—FRNEE -

BANK LOANS 17 $RITER
(a) The analysis of the carrying amount of bank loans is (a) BITEFEREENIFAOT :
as follows:
The Group
REE
2013 2012
—E—=F —EF——F
$°'000 $°000
SEow Tt
Current liabilities RBAE
Short-term bank loans FRHEIRITE N 27,839 49,267
Long-term bank loans JEEKIER 2 REIIRITER
repayable on demand 600 3,000
28,439 52,267
Non-current liabilities FRBARG
Long-term bank loans RHIRITER 1,210,887 1,174,149
1,239,326 1,226,416
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BA#SITSI7R

17 BANK LOANS (continued)

(b) At 31 December 2013, according to the original
repayment schedule, the bank loans were

(c)

(d)

SAEAEERIN)

17 RITERE)
(b) R=ZZE—=F+=-A=+—H8"
REBRRKBRETE > SRITER

repayable as follows: ERTYHAEEE -
The Group

AEE
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
$'000 $'000
Fx F7T
Within 1 year or on demand R—F R EE KR 27,839 49,267
After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMFA 64,197 2,400
After 2 years but within 5 years MEBREBERFA 198,423 188,069
After 5 years hFE 948,867 986,680
_______ ERbeN 077
1,239,326 1,226,416

At 31 December 2013, the bank loans were

secured as follows:

(c) R=B—=H5+=-A=+—1"
RITERZBEREROT :

The Group
AEEH
2013 2012
—E—=F —E——F
$°000 $'000
Tx Tt
Bank loans IRITER

- secured — H K 1,236,326 1,221,016
- unsecured — 3,000 5,400
1,239,326 1,226,416

At 31 December 2013, the Group had banking facilities
totalling $1,639,987,000 (2012: $1,461,773,000), of
which $1,636,987,000 (2012: $1,455,353,000) were
secured by certain of the Group’s fixed assets with net
book value of $1,393,779,000 as at 31 December 2013
(2012: $1,325,542,000) and certain of the Group's future
operating lease receivables. The banking facilities
were utilised to the extent of $1,236,326,000 as at 31

December 2013 (2012: $1,221,016,000).

HANS ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED

90

d R-ZBB—=%+-"A=+—
H AEBEZBRTHRERES
$£1,639,987,000C (=& — =
¢ 1,461,773,000 T ) - H A
1,636,987,000c( =& — =4 :
1,455,353,00070) W AR B A
FR-_ZE—ZF+-_A=+—
B 2 BEm % E A& 1,393,779,000
L (ZZF— 4 : 1,325542,000
TZETEE  UWRAEEE
TR S 4% 8 7 R W R IB R IR
o R TE—=F+-A=+—
H BEgRZBETRHRERETA
1,236,326,0000( =& — =4 :
1,221,016,0007T) °
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17 BANK LOANS (continued)

(e)

18
(a)

(b)

The Group’'s unsecured banking facilities of $3,000,000
as at 31 December 2013 (2012: $5,400,000) are subject
to the fulfilment of covenants relating to the Group's
net worth (defined as the net asset of the Group
less intangible assets, non-controlling interests and
dividend declared) as well as minimum shareholding
of the controlling shareholder of the Company, as
are commonly found in lending arrangements with
financial institutions. If the Group were to breach the
covenants, the drawn down facilities would become
payable on demand. At 31 December 2013, the Group
was in breach of the covenants relating to the Group's
net worth and the bank loan drawn down of $3,000,000 is
repayable at the bank’s sole discretion. In addition, the
abovementioned banking facilities contain clauses which
give the lender the right as its sole discretion to demand
immediate repayment at anytime irrespective of whether
the Group has complied with the covenants and met the
scheduled repayment obligations. The entire loan drawn
under the said banking facilities has been fully repaid in
January 2014.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

17 SRITERE)

(e)

R-_ZE—=%+-_A=+—8"
7N £ [#3,000000 (= FE—=
& : 5,400,00070) 2 K AFIET
FEESEBMALEEFE(TEA
NEBFEERELEE T
BERXIEERZEE) RAR
RIS R 2 ARSI E 2 5
FifRR - Mz 5 iRR7E B Ehig
BRI 2ERLZHPER - WA
EEERABRE  BIERIZ
EEBIRERER -RT—=
F+-_A=+—0 AEEDE
REBAEEZ FEZRE  E
MmiRTTRE 2 MM 1B Z R ANIF (B8
FriREN 2 3,000,000 TER1TE X -
o - EERTTIEE B S R
FEFRTEER2RERE ERANE
BREF  mMERIAEEES
BIIREVBITOEBENERE
T - R EMSRITEE T2
FIBEERER-_ZE—ME—A%
YIEE -

18 HmEEERBRDVZHE

Current tax recoverable in the consolidated (a) HEBEEEBERPZERBERN
balance sheet represents: B :
The Group
REE
2013 2012
—E—=F T
$°000 $'000
T T+t
Provisional PRC Enterprise B SR Bl S PTASA
Income Tax paid 19,161 18,580

Deferred tax liabilities recognised:
The movements of the Group's deferred tax liabilities
during the year are as follows:

(b) EREFELEHREARR :

FRAEERIEFHBAGZE
BraT

Depreciation allowances in
excess of the
related depreciation

BEHEETEZ B2
2013 2012
—E—=F T
$'000 $°000
T T

Deferred tax arising from: EEHRIERE :

At 1 January n—A—H 6,660 7,236
Exchange adjustments HE 54, 8 B 200 (3]
Credited to profit or loss (note 6(a))  FF AR (HI7t6s(a)) (584) (573)
At 31 December wnt+—A=1+—H 6,276 6,660
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18 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

(continued)

(c) Deferred tax assets not recognised:
In accordance with the accounting policy set out in note
1(n], the Group has not recognised deferred tax assets
in respect of the cumulative tax losses of approximately
$469 million (2012: $360 million) as it is not probable
that future taxable profits against which the losses
can be utilised will be available in the relevant tax
jurisdiction and entity. The tax losses of the Group’s PRC
subsidiaries will expire in 5 years after the relevant tax
losses were incurred while tax losses for the Group’s
subsidiaries in Hong Kong do not expire under the
current tax legislation.

(d) Deferred tax liabilities not recognised:
In PRC, dividends paid by a foreign-invested enterprise
to its foreign investors are subject to withholding tax
at a rate of 10% unless reduced by treaty. Under the
grandfathering treatments, undistributed profits of a
foreign-invested enterprise as at 31 December 2007 are
exempted from withholding tax.

At 31 December 2013, temporary differences relating
to the undistributed profits of subsidiaries amounted
to $155,215,000 (2012: $155,941,000]. Deferred tax
liabilities of $7,761,000 (2012: $7,797,000) have not been
recognised in respect of the tax that would be payable on
the distribution of these retained profits as the Company
controls the dividend policy of these subsidiaries and it
has been determined that it is probable that the profits
will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

19 AMOUNTS DUE TO RELATED PARTIES
The amounts due to related parties are unsecured, interest-
free and with no fixed terms of repayment.

The related parties have confirmed that they have no intention
to request repayment within twelve months from the balance
sheet date and accordingly, the balances are shown as non-
current.
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18 REBERBERPZAEH(E)

(c) RERIELERIAEE :
RIBHEE NP8 2 R BER -
R ERERRRTAAERE
RAR 5 RlARER B FERR Bt 1 A
HHBEREE  AEEXRBH
RAREBENLET(ZF
— 4 : 3.60187T) HERIETE
HEE - NEERT BB
WIS ERAS A B S B 1R %
HERSFNER  MAREFRITR
BiRD) - AEEERBOHBA
AR TS R IR SR AR o

(d) RERIEEHAEE :
PREE Wk rUR D BELSN - SNE
CEXNEGIMEEE ZIREA
BAN0%TEID - LR ZHBUE
REIT  SNEEER-_FTTLF
TZA=t—BZARDE&NE
ERBANTEM -

RZE—=F+=_A=+—
H - BB RFZARDEFE
HEAZHREYREZEAHA
155,215,000 L ( =& — Z 4 -
155,941,0007T) * ARG KRB B
R R ERS A BT RS2
BIEERIELERIBEAET,761,000
JT(=ZZ——% :7,797,0007C) °
RRRAQNTEFIZENB AR
ZIREBUR - WERBA e~ e
AT B R 3 IR A o

19 BTG FOR
FENRARE h < AR EER - RER
EEEEN -

BT EHRANSEREZRNEER
+
=]

REF T —EARER - Bt - %
BRIIRRIERE ©
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20 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

21

The employees of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are members
of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by
the PRC government. The Group is required to contribute
a certain percentage of the salaries, bonuses and certain
allowances of its staff to the retirement scheme. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit
scheme is to make the required contribution under the
scheme. The Group has no other material obligation for the
payment of pension benefits associated with this scheme
beyond the annual contributions described above.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (“the MPF scheme”] under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for employees employed
under the jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined contribution
retirement plan administered by independent trustees.
Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its employees
are each required to make contributions to the plan at 5% of
the employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of $25,000. Contributions to the plan vest
immediately.

EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED TRANSACTIONS
Pursuant to ordinary resolutions passed on 16 December
2002 and 28 December 2012, the Company adopted 2002
share option scheme (the "2002 scheme”] and 2012 share
option scheme (the "2012 scheme”) for the purpose of
enabling the Company to recruit and retain high-calibre
employees and attract resources that are available to the
Group and to provide the Company with a means of giving
incentive to, rewarding, remunerating, compensating and/
or providing benefits to such persons who contribute or may
bring benefit to the Group. Both schemes remain in force for
a period of 10 years from adoption of such scheme and expire
on 15 December 2012 and 27 December 2022 respectively.

Under the 2012 scheme, the board of directors of the
Company may at their discretion grant options to any eligible
participant including any employee, director, consultant,
agent, business affiliate, business partner, joint venture
partner, strategic partner of the Company or any subsidiaries
of the Company, or any supplier or provider of goods or
services to the Company or any subsidiaries of the Company
as may be determined by the directors from time to time to
subscribe for the shares of the Company.

No share option was granted to or exercised by any of the
Directors and senior management during the year ended
31 December 2013 (2012: Nil) and no share option was
outstanding under the 2002 scheme and 2012 scheme as at
31 December 2013 (2012: Nil).
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“E-ZFFR

BERAKEF
AEBETEZHELR ZEE BT
BB iR 1E 2 B3R & R RAa AT
BZKB - AEBEERHABT 2%
B AL RS TR R BB DA
AR IRETBIHER o BLaZ R IRAE A8l
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AEBE B EREGIER2E
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REBRGEABEFE ([REERS
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22 CAPITAL AND RESERVES 22 BXRKf#E
(a) Movements in components of equity (a) HEZMEARBD 2B E
The reconciliation between the opening and closing REEGRE =S HEKE D BI7)
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated HER AR IRE N R AR
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of BER o NA B Z(ERE AR
changes in equity. Details of the changes in the DRANFE Y E RS )R
Company’s individual components of equity between the BEERFIAT ©

beginning and the end of the year are set out below.

The Company b NN
Share Share  Accumulated
capital premium losses Total
R RPEE 2 ER @it
$°000 $°000 $°000 $°000
Tr T T T
Balance at 1 January 2012 R-E-—%-8-H
LEERR 373,264 710,477 (529,211) 554,530
Changes in equity for 2012: TE-CERERE.
Loss and total FRBERZEYE
comprehensive income ]
for the year - - (4,667) (4,667)
Balance at 31 December 2012 R=-Z——£
and 1 January 2013 +ZA=+-8k
“Z2-=f5-A—-H
2R 373,264 710,477 (533,878) 549,863
Changes in equity for 2013: “E-CFEREE .
Loss and total comprehensive ~ FREERZAME
income for the year o] - = (3,950) (3,950)
Balance at 31 December 2013 R=Z—=£
+=A=+-H
iR 373,264 710,477 (537,828) 545,913
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22 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 22 BEXRRREEE)
(b) Share capital (b) KA
The Company
N
Number of
ordinary
shares Amount
ZEREE G
$°000 $°000
TR T
Ordinary shares of $0.10 each: SREE0I0TZZLER :
Authorised: JETE -
At 31 December 2012 and 2013 RIE——FR-FT—=F
+=-—A=+—H 10,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRHE -
At 31 December 2012 and 2013 NZEBE——FER-_T—=%F
+=—A=+—H 3,732,638 373,264
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive TEREE ABRERATRE
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled IREWRE - WEERARFS
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. BLRER—FEERERR B
All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the TERERARBIFGEEREA
Company’s residual assets. R EHAL ©
(¢) Nature and purpose of reserves (c) FHEMHERARE
(i) Share premium il B=EE
The application of the share premium account is RO BEERNEAXFES
governed by the Companies Law (Revised) of the HERAEREREE -
Cayman Islands.
(ii) Special reserve (ii) 45RIREE

The special reserve arose from the reverse
acquisition in December 2004.

BRHER -—ZTTNF
T ANRKEMmMESL

(iii) Translation reserve lii) X5 B
The translation reserve comprises all foreign R FHBEEBRERTBIN
exchange differences arising from the translation SN RGBS R AE &

of the financial statements of operations outside
Hong Kong. The reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policy set out in note 1(r).
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22 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

(c)

Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iv) Statutory reserve
Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations for
foreign investment enterprises, a portion of the
profits of the Group’s subsidiaries operating in the
PRC is required to transfer to the statutory reserve.
The amounts of profits transferred to the statutory
reserve are determined by the board of directors
of the subsidiaries according to the articles of
association. The reserve is restricted as to use and
is not available for distribution.

(d) Distributability of reserves

(e)

The Company’s reserves available for distribution
to its shareholders comprise share premium and
accumulated losses which in aggregate amounted
to approximately $173 million as at 31 December
2013 (2012: $177 million). Under the Companies Law
(Revised] of the Cayman Islands, the share premium
of the Company is available for paying distributions or
dividends to shareholders subject to the provisions of its
memorandum and articles of association and provided
that immediately following the payment of distribution
or dividends, the Company is able to pay its debts as
they fall due in the ordinary course of business. In
accordance with the Company’s articles of association,
distributions shall be payable out of the profits or other
reserves, including the share premium account, of the
Company.

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and
to maintain an optional capital structure to reduce the
cost of capital.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of
a net debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose the Group
defines net debt as total debt (which includes interest-
bearing loans and borrowings], less cash and cash
equivalents. Capital comprises all components of equity,
plus net debt.
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(c)

RETERRARE)

liv) EERE
REBEBINERELEN
MEARAR - AEER
B2 E ) B B A B E D
7 M B B E R E W
- BREATREND
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(d) "I

(e)

RARAHIEFREZ FEHERE
BHaEREFTER R
—=F+-A=+—H&HK
TRET(ZE——F 17718
JT) ° IREMEHEARNA(EE
7)) ARE 2D EE R BE
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ADEERN B B EBREPEED
HERS - RIBAQR ZAMER
MBI - ADRZ DIRBM R F Bk

Hib i - BRARE 2B
BRRAPIZER ©
RAEE

AEEZERBRREERAA
REREBE 2 FFEEE 6
PAEELRE B AR IR M 3R &
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22 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued) 22 BAXRRGHEE)

(e) Capital management (continued)

During 2013, the Group's strategy, which was unchanged
from 2012, was to maintain the net debt-to-capital ratio
at an appropriate level. In order to maintain or adjust
the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to
shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell assets to
reduce debt.

The net debt-to-capital ratio (as defined above) was 0.79
and 0.73 as at 31 December 2013 and 2012 respectively.

Except for the banking facilities which require the
fulfillment of covenants relating to certain of the
Group’s financial ratios as disclosed in note 17(e] to the
financial statements, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed capital
requirements.

23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 23
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency
risks arises in the normal course of the Group's business.
The Group's exposure to these risks and the financial risk
management policies and practices used by the Group to
manage these risks are described below.

(a) Credit risk
The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents.
Management has a credit policy in place and the
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, individual
credit evaluations are performed on all customers
requiring credit over a certain amount. These evaluations
focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the customer as well
as pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables are due within 30
days from the date of billing. Debtors with balances that
are more than 1 month past due are requested to settle
all outstanding balances before any further credit is
granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers.
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(e)
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23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
(continued)

(@)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each customer
rather than the industry and country in which customers
operate and therefore significant concentration of credit
risk primarily arise when the Group has significant
exposure to individual customers. At the balance sheet
date, the Group has a certain concentration of credit
risk as 32% (2012: 17%) of the total trade and other
receivables was due from the Group's five largest
customers.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the
Group's exposure to credit risk arising from trade and
other receivables are set out in note 14.

In respect of cash and cash equivalents, the Group
limits its exposure to credit risk by placing deposits with
financial institutions that meet the established credit
rating or other criteria. Given these high credit ratings,
management does not expect any counterparty to fail to
meet its obligations.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group has a certain
concentration of credit risk as 27% (2012: 66%]) of
total cash and cash equivalents were deposited with a
financial institution in the PRC.

Apart from guarantees issued by the Company in
respect of banking facilities granted to its subsidiaries
as disclosed in note 27, the Group does not provide any
other guarantees which would expose the Group or the
Company to credit risk.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the parent Company’s board
when the borrowings exceed certain predetermined
levels of authority. The Company’s policy is to regularly
monitor current and expected liquidity requirements
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash
and adequate committed lines of funding from major
financial institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in
the short and longer term.
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23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 23 B#EMREERAABE)
(continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) ESREHERR(E
The following table details the remaining contractual TRINEAREE RARRZ T
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group's EERBEREERZBTERN
and the Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities, HARREHIE - m R ERE LAARITIR
which are based on contractual undiscounted cash REeR(BEBELAT X -
flows (including interest payments computed using N F R REHNEER
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current FFEZAEBEH) RAEE A
at the balance sheet date) and the earliest date the RRAREHEERCARTE -
Group and the Company can be required to pay:
The Group REE
0 w0
—g-=F ZF-C
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
SHARRRERH AORBRELTL
Morethan  More than Morethan ~ More than
Within 1 year 2years Carrying Within 1 year 2years Carrying
Tyearor  butwithin  butwithin  More than amount at Tyearor  butwithin ~ butwithin ~ More than amount at
on demand 2years 5years 5years Total 31December  on demand 2years 5years 5years Total - 31 December
R ®
-FRy BE-F BERE TZR=t-B  -FAd  BA-F  BERE TZA=+-8
REAR  ERER  BREER  RBIE & BEE  ABEE  EWMEN ERERN BARF & EaEf
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
i i n i i i ke R i i v i
Bank loans v 108232 11806 AO%158 1143565 1802759 1289326 131940 BOEABels 12900 ISI005 1226416
Other payables andaccruals ~ EMERVERGHEER 53372 - - - 53,372 53,372 86671 - 86,671 46,471
Amounts due to related parties ~ EREEAZE - 210,764 - - 210,764 210,764 - 186,436 186,436 186,43
161606 32568 409158 1143565 2066895 1503462 98¢l 2056 03els 1290 20312 14908
The Company b /N
013 0
jut- B3 -5
Contractual undiscounted cash outflow Contractual undiscounted cash outflow
ANRERR SR SHRERRLR
More than More than
Within 1 year Carrying Within 1year Carrying
1year or but within amount at Tyear or but within amount at
on demand 2years Total 31 December on demand 2years Total 31 December
—FRg, BB-F 1t2A=t+-R —Eg fefoma TZA=+-R
REAR BRER i BEE S iFils BRER &% BEE
$000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000 $000
i i i Fr i fr T T
Other payables and accruals EHERTERRER 2102 - 2102 2102 2102 - 2,102 2102
Amount due to a related party BB AE - 30,000 30,000 30,000 - 30,000 30,000 30,000
2102 30,000 2102 2102 210 30000 010 2102
Financial quarantees issued BELZEBER:
- Maximum amount of quarantee [note 1)~ —ERZSEHB(K ) 3,000 - 3,000 - 5,400 - 5,400 -
EERRARAR 99 —T-=5FR



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bup e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BAFTTHIR + BEERERRSN)

23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 23 B¥EBEERAAMEE)
(continued)
(c) Interest rate risk (c) FRER
The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from REE 2 FERREEREHRT
bank borrowings. The Group’'s bank borrowings at BE  AEERZZE—=F+=
31 December 2013 were issued at variable rates and A=+—RHZRTEERZHF
fixed rates and therefore expose the Group to cash EREEFMEFE BmMTARE
flow interest rate risk. The Group’s and the Company's EEEIR RN R o NEE
interest rate profile as monitored by management is set RARG 2 FERBEEEES
outin (i) below. PEA TN T X E()IE o
(i) Interest rate profile (i) FIZEHR
The Group The Company
i3] 9%
2013 2012 2013 2012
8-k —“E-CF —g-=f It St
Effective Effective Effective Effective
interest rate Amount nterest rate Amount interest rate Amount interest rate Amount
BRI & ERA= £8 BRAE Ea | BTz ]
$000 $000 $'000 $000
T T Tr T
Net fixed rate EEfHE
borrowings: R
Time deposits THER - - 285% 30,834 - - - -
Bank loans HITEH 6.00% (25,439) 7.05% (370,003) = = - -
25,439) 339,171) o -
Net variable rate HE(EE)/
(borrowings)/deposits:  ZFFHE
Cash at bank ik 0.01% - 0.35% 56,993  0.01%-131% 62731 0.01% 28 0.01% 32
Bank loans HHER 2.12% - 6.55% 1,213,887)  2.90% - 7.05% (856,411) - - - -
(1,156,894) (813,674 28 32
Totalnet (borrowings)/  (f8) /%3
deposits FHEE (1,182,333) (1,152,865) 2 32

HANS ENERGY COMPANY LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS RAR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (IAFTTHIR + BEEAEERSIN)

23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
(continued)
(c) Interest rate risk (continued)

(ii)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2013, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant, would
increase/decrease the Group's loss for the year and
accumulated losses by approximately $11,569,000
(2012: $8,137,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the balance sheet date and had been
applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for all
non-derivative financial instruments in existence
at that date. The 100 basis points increase or
decrease represents management’'s assessment of
a reasonably possible change in interest rates over
the period until the next annual balance sheet date.
The analysis is performed on the same basis for
2012.

(d) Currency risk

(i)

Foreign currency transactions

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
through billings of storage and transshipment
income that are denominated in a currency other
than the functional currency of the operations to
which they relate. The currency giving rise to this
risk are primarily United States dollars ["USD").

As the Hong Kong dollars ("HKD") is pegged to the
USD, the Group considers the risk of movements in
exchange rates between the HKD and the USD to
be insignificant. As such, no sensitivity analysis is
presented.

EERERAT 101

23

—=FFR

B 75 JE B

EERAAEGE)

(c) M=mpE)

(ii)

BRESH
R—_ZEZE—=Z=F+_- A8
=t+—8 EFRBEAMT
“mI%%hT“m%ﬂ

CEEFE R R EFH
T%—E%% 1% 5 Bl 1
m/ B AEEZFRE
B Z5TEE#)11,569,000
T(=F——% :8,137,000
JL) °

A bR 8URE 3 AT IR R A
REHONGEEBRELM
BE YEEBRMRZ
HPTEEREFITET R
THRAZMERER - —BA#
FREMBOBR D IEEIEEY
EET—EAFEAEAN
Bz F & ges e EZ
BRI ﬁm}

—ZFER AR

(d) E¥ERR

(i)

HMNEZ B
REBMEZEHRIGE -
ﬁ&ﬁ%%kZ%ﬁE
HZELEER 2 NEE
MEEREMBKERE
Ek - BRIEERRKRZE
rERIEL(ErT] -

PETT([ET]) BET
H% REBERRBTHE
ETEXREE 2 BRI
EXR - Hit - XEZ5IH
RE AT



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bup e

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BAFTTHIR + BEERERRSN)

23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES
(continued)
(d) Currency risk (continued)
(ii) Recognised assets and liabilities

In respect of trade receivables and deposits held in
currencies other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate, the Group ensures
that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable
level, by buying or selling foreign currencies at
spot rates where necessary to address short-term
imbalances.

All the Group’s borrowings are denominated in the
functional currency of the entity taking out the loan.
Given this, management does not expect that there
will be any significant currency risk associated with
the Group’s borrowings.

(iii) Exposure to currency risk

The following table details the Group’s exposure
at the balance sheet date to currency risk arising
from recognised assets or liabilities denominated
in a currency other than the functional currency
of the entity to which they relate. For presentation
purposes, the amounts of the exposures are
expressed in HKD, translated using the spot rate at
the balance sheet date.

23 BIBEBREERAAMEGE)

(d) E¥ERGE)

lil ERRAEERER
ERNBRAEH ZWEEE
’i%%LAQI\Zf%%ﬁZA@
B 5 RWHRIARER -
SEeELREHN T F
B WREEXEAR
BHINE - RFTEH
R — AR HKF -

Uﬂﬁ

AEBZHAEEEHNIE
RMERZEBZIERS
Eﬂé Hit - EBEL T
BHAKEZEEETK
EREAZEERE

lii) AEHNEEERE
TRINBARERGEE
BE

HERABHEERESR
MLA’JI\Z K IMEZ B
REERBEMELZE

’i%zﬂ LB - RIE2IZ
B EREREERZE
REIR BB TLIIR o

2013 2012

—E-=F —E——F

United States United States

Dollars Dollars

EH ETT

$°000 $'000

T T

Trade and other receivables B 5 R E A EUGRIE 419 541
Cash and cash equivalents ESE\ ReFEIER 913 4,420
Overall exposure to currency risk B E @ 1,332 4,961
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S Fs R MYt

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (IAFTTHIR + BEEAEERSIN)

23 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUES 23 BEERTERAAMBGE)

(continued)
(e) Fair values (e) AAE
All financial instruments are carried at amounts not BRI TE AReREEER
materially different from their fair values as at 31 TE-—FERN T —=ZF+—
December 2012 and 2013, except for the amounts due to A=1+—BZARELEERT
related parties which are unsecured, interest-free and [ - IR 2R REEEER
with no fixed terms of repayment. Given these terms, it is HA 2 FEAT ARG 75 RRIERR SN © BN
not meaningful to disclose their fair values. ZEGRF  BRAZEAAET
mER -
24 OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 24 EEBERS
(a) The Group as lessee (a) E=EBEAEEA
At the balance sheet date, the Group had commitments REEH - NEEBRE TR
for future minimum lease payments under non- ZETMREEREREIN 2K
cancellable operating leases in respect of certain REEHESHAEZFEANT
properties, which fall due as follows:
The Group
rEE
2013 2012
—EB—=F —EF——F
$’000 $'000
T T
Within one year —F A 3,334 7,488
After one year but within five years ~ —%F&EHER 4,746 1,462
After five years hE 740 902
8,820 9,852
Leases are negotiated for an average term of 1 to 10 BAOTIRRFE—E+F 2 FH
years with fixed rentals. None of the leases includes HEITHERY - BINMESTE - FTA
contingent rentals. MAOMEBERAEE -

EERERAT 103 T CEER
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BAFTTHIR + BEERERRSN)

24 OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (continued) 24 REHERHE)
(b) The Group as lessor (b) AEBEHEHBAA

The Group leases out certain dock and storage facilities
under operating leases.

Rental and storage income earned during the year
was approximately $215 million (2012: $199 million).
The leases are negotiated for a lease term of 1 to 15
years (2012: 1 to 15 years). None of the leases includes
contingent rentals.

The Group's total future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases are receivables as
follows:

AEERBLLHELHEE T
B N AP T ek BE

FRATHBZHE RETFERAL
B2 I5EIT(ZE——F : 1998
JT) e MENER—ZE+RHF (=
T——F: —E+AF)ZFH
TR - ZEHEMESEK
PAVi i

AREERBENAHEEEHE
FEW 2 KRR B BT

The Group
AEE

2013 2012
—2-=f —T=F
$'000 $'000
T T
Within one year —FR 49,651 97,048
After one year but within five years ~ —F&BRFA 26,198 86,964
After five years hFE 44,285 25,141
120,134 209,153

As set out in note 14(b] to the financial statements, the
Lessee requested to unilaterally terminate the Lease
Agreement. As a result, the above analysis does not
include the relevant operating lease receivables of the
Lease Agreement.
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AEABTEERKIEHEER
o OABERYBWMRME
14(b) » EItt - BT RFTA
ZHEE AL L HE R
A e

ANNUAL REPORT 2013



25

26

27

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS RAR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (IAFTTHIR + BEEAEERSIN)

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At 31 December 2013, the Group had capital expenditure
contracted for but not provided in the financial statements in
respect of terminal development and acquisition of port and
storage facilities amounted to $22 million (2012: $21 million).

At 31 December 2013, the Group had capital expenditure not
contracted for but approved by the board and not provided in
the financial statements in respect of terminal development
and acquisition of port and storage facilities amounted to
approximately $149 million (2012: $145 million).

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered
into the following material related party transactions:

Key management personnel remuneration
Remuneration for key management personnel represents

amounts paid to the Company’s directors as disclosed in note
7.

None of the above related party transactions falls under the
definition of connected transaction or continuing connected
transaction as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Financial guarantees issued

As at the balance sheet date, the Company has issued
guarantees to banks in respect of banking facilities granted
to its subsidiaries. The directors do not consider it probable
that a claim will be made against the Company under any of
the guarantees. The maximum liability of the Company at the
balance sheet date under the guarantee is the amount of the
loan drawn down by the subsidiaries that are covered by the
guarantees of $3,000,000 (2012: $5,400,000). The loan has
been fully repaid in January 2014.

The Company has not recognised any deferred income in
respect of the guarantees as its fair value cannot be reliably
measured using observable market data and its transaction
price was $Nil (2012: $Nil.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (BA#SITSI7R

28

SAEAEERIN)

NON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
After the balance sheet date, the Group received an
arbitration award dated 5 March 2014 (the “Arbitration
Award”) from the Arbitration Commission, details of which
are as follows:

- the Lease Agreement and a supplemental agreement to
the Lease Agreement entered into between the Group
and the Lessee be terminated;

- the Lessee shall pay the Group a default payment of
RMB607,320,000 (equivalent to $772,475,000);

- the Group shall refund to the Lessee the rental of
oil storage tanks of RMB21,786,000 (equivalent to
$27,711,000);

- the other claims made by the Group be rejected;

- the other counterclaims made by the Lessee be rejected:;
and

- the arbitration fee for the claims made by the Group
amounted to RMB4,982,000 (equivalent to $6,336,000,
which shall be borne by the Group as to RMB996,000
(equivalent to $1,267,000) and by the Lessee as to
RMB3,986,000 (equivalent to $5,069,000). The arbitration
fee for the counterclaims made by the Lessee amounted
to RMB9,559,000 (equivalent to $12,159,000), which shall
be borne by the Group as to RMB956,000 (equivalent
to $1,216,000) and by the Lessee as to RMB8,603,000
(equivalent to $10,943,000).

The Arbitration Commission ordered that an one-off payment
of the net amount of the above awards (being the gross
amount payable by the Lessee to the Group off-setting the
gross amount payable by the Group to the Lessee pursuant
to the Arbitration Award) be paid by the Lessee to the Group
within ten days from the date of the Arbitration Award being
served, and the Arbitration Award shall have legal effect from
the date when the Arbitration Award was made.

Up to the date of this report, the above payment has not yet
been received from the Lessee. In this connection, the Group
filed an application to the Intermediate People’s Court of
Guangzhou City, Guangdong Province for enforcement of the
Arbitration Award by the Lessee on 19 March 2014.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS RAR MY RE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated) (IAFTTHIR + BEEAEERSIN)

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

At 31 December 2013, the directors consider the immediate
parent and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be
Vand Petro-Chemicals [BVI) Company Limited, which is
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands. This entity does not
produce financial statements available for public use.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013
Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a few amendments and a new standard
which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December
2013 and which have not been adopted in these financial
statements. These include the following which may be
relevant to the Group.

29

30

BEERGRERT

RZZE—=F+=ZHA=+—H E=
REASENEES R RERIE
f% 7 AVand Petro-Chemicals (BVI)
Company Limited * R REEZAE
S o WEB ISR E®
FURMARER

EERERBE-Z—Z=F+=A
S+ —BUEFEERERZET - #
AIEARREARER 2ZE

BEATBHRATIEER - G
B AEC RS TIRERT R —IAM AT
ER - EREE_T—=F1+_H
=+ RIEFERARER - TIARER

N R - ZE R REERAEHE
EREZIERT - BRERFATERMT -

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

AT BEHH =%

MR ZEHBEN

Amendments to HKAS 32, Offsetting CHEBGETAERDEI2FSET A - 1 January 2014
financial assets and financial liabilities HigeHEERCHEE —mE—AF—H
Amendments to HKAS 39, Novation of (B#BE u‘fﬁ.—/ﬁ‘l>>%39aff uTZlK ' 1 January 2014

derivatives and continuation of

ZIEE

hedge accounting

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments
[T A

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments is expected to be in the
period of initial application, but is not yet in a position to state
whether those amendments and new standard would have a
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

T FEMBHME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A TTHI7R)

Year ended 31 December

BZ2+-A=1t—-HLEE

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
—LThNF —E22F —T—F —T——_F ZE-=F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $°000
Tt T Tt T T
RESULTS E 3
Turnover EEX 158,944 159,615 144,884 204,019 220,421
Profit/(loss) before taxation  B&FLATHF], (E518) 67,038 63,545 (143,253)  (124,608)  [(115,444)
Income tax Fr{SHL (19,085) (20,738) 182 573 584
Profit/(loss) attributable to AN &) IR SR FE(S
equity shareholders of S (E)
the Company 41,746 37,020 (133,930)  (116,713)  (108,061)
Profit/(loss) attributable to  FEIEREREZS FE(E
non-controlling interests 37,/ (E518) 6,207 5,787 (9,141) (7,322) (6,799)
Profit/(loss) for the year FREF,(EE) 47,953 42,807 (143,071)  (124,035)  (114,860)
At 31 December
R+t=—HA=+—H
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
—TTNF —TTF —T——F —T-—F ZE-=F
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $°000
Fit Fit Tt Tt T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ¥EREE
Total assets BERTE 1647571 1,899,914 2,009,661 1,907,379 1,831,548
Total liabilities BERE 1,056,466 1,243,406 1,464,727 1,486,866 1,511,831
Non-controlling interests ~ JEEfAERS 46,567 54,117 47,449 40,096 34,441
Total equity attributable to  ANAFIAXEEIL
equity shareholders of RS
the Company 544,538 602,391 497,485 380,417 285,276
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